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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the main board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

report.

This report, for which the directors of North Asia Strategic Holdings
Limited (the “Directors” or the “Board”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to North
Asia Strategic Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make

any statement herein or this report misleading.
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QR EH
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DUECE S

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as

TXEHIAEENBEREAVRFEZEE &
E AEkESMEZ(ERa 0 TBRERRM
BREGENBEBERTEIEFHE) -

4

appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=t—HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013
—T-RF —T-RF —T-mFE —FT-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(4 E3)) (4 E5)
Revenue WA 1,295,754 1,235,797 1,258,134 907,690 733,955
Profit/(loss) before tax  BREATEF, (EE) 42,890 10,026 22,524 12,988 (33,936)
Income tax expenses  FTiSHi s H (8,133) (7,753) (5,963) (3,282) (4,111)
Profit/(loss) for the year HERKLEK
from continuing FEREF,
operations (518) 34,757 2,273 16,561 9,706 (38,047)
Profit/(loss) for the year #X AT TS 2
from a discontinued FREF
operation (E518) (4,136) (273,603) 8,992 37,444 4,556
Profit/(loss) attributable 787/ &) B3R fE (L
to the shareholders of &7/ (E#E)
the Company 30,621 (271,330) 25,553 47,150 (33,491)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE - AERES

As at 31st March
R=A=+—H

2016 2015 2014 2013

TR F ZE—hF ZZ—WmOF ZZZT—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT FHET FET FHETT

Total assets BEBE 1,230,709 1,294,194 1,437,032 1,115,285 1,170,005

Total liabilities BEmE (387,501) | (479,862)  (380,687)  (122,753)  (196,358)
Equity attributable to AR A R IREEAS

shareholders of the g
Company 843,208 814,332 1,056,345 992,532 973,647
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETREHES

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of North Asia Strategic
Holdings Limited (“Company”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) and its audited financial results for the financial year
ended 31st March 2017 (the “year”).

GENERAL OVERVIEW

During the year, the Group had streamlined its businesses by
disposal of the mining consulting business and focused on the
operations of hi-tech distribution and services division and the
finance leasing division. We had also upgraded our Enterprise
Resource Planning system to enhance the Group’s financial
reporting efficiency, financial management and cost control. We
have seen a significant improvement in profitability in the year on
the hi-tech distribution and services division and the finance leasing
division. Our finance leasing division, which mainly provide finance
leasing option to the customers of hi-tech distribution and services
division had shown remarkable progress in establishing a lending
portfolio that can improve the return on utilization of the Group’s

cash.

The Group recorded a consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$30.6 million on a revenue of approximately HK$1,296 million,
compared to a consolidated net loss of approximately HK$271.3
million on a revenue of approximately HK$1,236 million (restated)

for the last year.

Contrary to the loss incurred in last year, which was mainly due to
an one-off impairment of goodwill for the mining consulting business
amounted to approximately HK$243.6 million, the Group had
returned to profit in the year as a result of the achievement of sound
control of its operating costs and remarkable growth in finance
leasing business combined with the effect of discontinuing the loss

making mining consulting business during the year.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
TREHES

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS

i) Hi-Tech Distribution and Services Division

During the year, the division achieved a net profit of
approximately HK$54.4 million, increased by 71.2% from last
year, and a revenue of approximately HK$1,286.7 million,

slightly increased by 4.3% from last year.

We had seen some positive data in 2016 that the global
purchasing managers’ index (“PMI”) had risen above 50
from second half of 2016 and continue to rise in early
2017. Compared to 2015, the units of Surface Mount
Technology (“SMT”) machines imported to China had grown
by approximately 5% in 2016. The increase in demand
for SMT machines are mainly driven by the smartphone
manufacturers, network and communication manufactures,
automotive electronics and wearable devices etc. To further
enhance American Tec’s (as defined below) position in the
mobile device market as well as internet related products
segment, commonly termed as loT (“Internet of Things”), our
management team continues to maintain a close partnership
and collaboration with its key business partner, Fuji Machine
Mfg Co., Ltd (“Fuji”), a manufacturer of high precision,
leading edge technology SMT machines and other industry-
leading peripheral equipment suppliers and business
partners, in seizing the opportunities of smart manufacturing
transformation under China’s vision of China Manufacturing

2025. During the year, American Tec had became the sole

distributor of Fuji’'s new solder paste printer in China.

ii) Finance Leasing Division

During the year, the finance leasing division had continued
to grow satisfactory and recorded a revenue of HK$9 million,
representing an increase of 290% from last year's HK$2.3
million. As at 31st March 2017, the aggregate principal
amount of finance lease loans had increased by 146.3% from

last year's HK$71.3 million to HK$175.6 million.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3z KRB IZRER AR
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETREHES

OUTLOOK

We expect the global economy to grow gradually in the coming
year. The increasing popularity of Virtual Reality (“VR”) and
Augmented Reality (“AR”) offer new opportunities to our businesses.
We strive to maintain our market leading position in the industry of
our Hi-tech distribution and services division by providing better
services and enhancing the marketing program. The finance leasing
operations will achieve a high growth and produce synergy effect
with the Group’s business operations. Going forward, the Group will
continue to enhance the operational efficiency of varies business
divisions with an aim to improve their profitability and increase

shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

We believe our long-term investment strategy, setting operating
goals, motivating our staff and sharing success with business
partners will be essential elements for the Group’s success. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
business partners, our customers, the Board and our employees for
their trust and support in the year. On behalf of the Board, | would
also like to offer our utmost appreciation to our shareholders for

their confidence in our Company.

Zhang Yifan

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 8th June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue from
continuing operations of approximately HK$1,295,754,000 slightly
increased by 4.9% from HK$1,235,797,000 (restated) in last year.
The increase in revenue was mainly due to approximately 4.3% and
290% year on year increase in revenue from our hi-tech distribution
and services division and finance leasing division respectively. The
Group disposed of its mining consulting division on 4th November
2016 and it was deconsolidated thereafter. During the year, the
Group successfully turned-around and recorded a consolidated
net profit of approximately HK$30,621,000, contrary to a net loss
of approximately HK$271,330,000 in last year, which was mainly
due to the impairment of goodwill of our mining consulting division
amounted to approximately HK$243,593,000.

During the year, the Group’'s operating expenditures from
continuing operations amounted to approximately HK$177,085,000,
representing a slight increase of 4.4% from approximately
HK$169,624,000 (restated) in last year. The increase in operating
expenditures was mainly due to increase in selling and distribution
expenses which were increased in line with revenue. Furthermore,
the Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately
HK1.60 cents in the year where as the Group recorded a basic loss
per share of approximately HK14.25 cents in last year due to the
impact of impairment of goodwill and provision on trade and other

receivables.

Below is a summary of the financial and business highlights of our
business divisions. The profit/loss figures, disclosed below, do not
include any intra-group sales and charges, as they are eliminated

upon consolidation.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3z KRB IZRER AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR DA

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

The Group conducts its hi-tech distribution and services business
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, American Tec Company
Limited (“American Tec”). American Tec is a leader in Asia in the
business of distribution, sales and service of SMT equipment,
semiconductor manufacturing equipment, automation solutions
and software on manufacturing control, with a history of more
than 30 years serving its customers in the hi-technology sector.
American Tec’s team of more than 250 engineers and customer
care staff are located in more than 25 cities in China, South-East
Asia, Vietnam and India. Customers include most of the major
telecom and electronic equipment manufacturers in the world.
American Tec is especially well positioned with the growing base of
Chinese manufacturers. Its suppliers include leading equipment and

solutions manufacturers from Asia, the United States and Europe.

During the year, the division recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$1,286,725,000, representing an increase of about 4.3% from
approximately HK$1,233,482,000 last year. The reason of increase
in revenue was mainly due to the growth in manufacturing activities
and investments in provincial projects, such as a number of new
orders that we received are from government funded projects
(in Guiyang, Nanchang, Zhunyi, etc..) relating to mobile phone
manufacturing. During the year, the division recorded approximately
HK$1,191,616,000 of direct machine sales, representing an
increase of 5.7% from approximately HK$1,127,548,000 in last
year, which was supported by new orders secured from non-mobile
phone manufacturing segment, namely LED, automotive electronics
and consumer product market. Also, the division recorded an
increase of 88.6% from its commission and other service income
from approximately HK$11,326,000 in last year to approximately
HK$21,361,000 in the year. However, due to lack of repeat orders
from key accounts, the software sales was decreased by 24.3%
from approximately HK$21,053,000 in last year to approximately
HK$15,935,000 in the year, and the spare parts sales was
decreased by 21.4% from approximately HK$73,555,000 in last year
to approximately HK$57,813,000 in the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

Despite the slow-down of investments from global key accounts
and flattening of mobile phone manufacturing investments, the
Group has managed to maintain strong revenue performance
with continued development of quality customers in both the
mobile device market segment as well as other fast growing
markets such as automotive electronics, LED lighting & display
and smart consumer products. The success by local smart phone
manufacturers, such as Huawei, Oppo, etc, to win market share from
leading players such as Apple and Samsung had also benefited our

business as they had to expand their capacity.

American Tec’s management has taken various measures to
maintain operating cost efficiency and has achieved expected
profitability despite an increasing challenging market. During
the year, the division recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$54,398,000 representing an increase of 71.2% from last year's
net profit of approximately HK$31,766,000.

FINANCE LEASING DIVISION

The Group conducts its finance leasing business through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, North Asia Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(*“NAFL”) in China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone. The division
commenced its finance leasing business from the mid of July 2015.
NAFL mainly provides finance lease to customers of the Group’s hi-
tech distribution and services division and projects involving the

computer numerical control (“CNC”) machinery.

During the year, the division generated a revenue from finance
lease interest income of approximately HK$9,029,000, representing
an increase of 290% from approximately HK$2,315,000 in
the corresponding period last year and recorded a net profit
of approximately HK$1,570,000 as compared a net loss of
HK$2,346,000 in last year. As at 31st March 2017, the aggregate
principal amount of finance lease loans was HK$175,617,000,
representing an increase by 146.3% from HK$71,032,000 as at 31st
March 2016.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3z KRB IZRER AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR DA

Corporate Development
General offer by a substantial shareholder

On 5th April 2016, the Company announced that it had been
informed by Mr. Ding Yi (*“Mr. Ding”), a former Director and
substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. Lu Ying (“Ms.
Lu"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, that after Mr. Ding
had resigned as the Company’s executive Director and Chairman
on 31st March 2016, Mr. Ding sold 400,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (“Shares”) to Ms. Lu for a cash consideration
of HK$30,000,000, at HK$0.075 per Share (the “Transaction”).
Immediately after the completion of the Transaction, Ms. Lu held
969,058,296 Shares, or approximately 50.6% in the total number
of Shares in issue. As a result of the Transaction, Ms. Lu had
increased her voting rights in the Company to more than 30% and
it had triggered an obligation by Ms. Lu to make an unconditional
mandatory cash offer (the “Offer”) under Rule 26 of The Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases for all the
Shares. Details of the Transaction and the Offer are disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 5th April 2016, joint
announcement dated 18th April 2016 and the Company’s composite
document dated 20th May 2016. On 10th June 2016, the Company
announced that immediately after the close of the Offer and taking
into account the valid acceptances in respect of 47,818,132 Shares
of the Company, Ms. Lu and parties acting in concert with her were
interested in an aggregate of 1,016,876,428 Shares, representing

approximately 53.1% of the total number of Shares in issue.
Discontinued operation — Mining consulting division

The Group completed the disposal of mining consulting division on
4th November 2016 and recognised a disposal gain of HK$153,000
and the mining consulting division was deconsolidated thereafter.
Apart from the gain on disposal, the Group had recorded net loss of
approximately HK$4,136,000 from mining consulting business up to

the date of disposal during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

Use of Proceeds from Placing

On 15th April 2015, 300,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at
a placing price of HK$0.105 per share to Ms. Lu Ying through a
placing agent on a best effort basis. The placing proceeds net of
relevant expenses including the placing commission amounted
to approximately HK$30 million. The Group has fully utilised the
amount of the net proceeds in staff costs, rental and other office

expenses during the year.

OUTLOOK
Overall Summary

The management is confident in the prospects in both of the hi-tech
distribution and services division and finance leasing division with
the launch of “Industry 4.0” initiative, coupled with the advocacy of
the Chinese government in the “Smart Manufacturing 2025” project.
Our focus will be to continue to manage cash, costs and risks and,
to build our strength during this turbulent time by working with our

management teams to improve capability and efficiency.
Hi-tech Distribution and Services Division

World electronic equipment shipments, driven by Asia Pacific,
appear to have hit their winter bottom and should be rebounding
soon. Business conditions have been improving as noted by rising
Purchasing Managers Indices (leading indicators) and generally
stronger global growth by sector of the supply chain. In March
2017, China’s manufacturing purchasing managers index (PMI)
was 51.8 percent, rising for two consecutive months, an increase
of 0.2 percentage points over last month, and the manufacturing
industry continued to keep a steady and positive trend. Coming
off the smartphone market’'s lowest year-on-year growth of 2.5% in
2016, a new forecast from International Data Corporation (“IDC”)
shows worldwide smartphone shipments rebounding in 2017 and
beyond. While growth is expected to remain in the low single digit,
IDC predicts 2017 shipment volumes to grow 4.2% in 2017 and 4.4%
in 2018 with a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of 3.8% over
the 2016-2021 forecast. Shipments are forecast to reach 1.53 billion
units in 2017 and grow to 1.77 billion in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR DA

Hi-tech Distribution and Services Division (continued)

In regards to rest of end market development, mobile hardware,
software, and services revenues will expand 2.6% year on year
to US$1.57 trillion in 2017 and grow at 2.1% CAGR to US$1.67
trillion in 2020. Personal computing device shipments, comprising
traditional PCs and tablets, are forecast to decline at 0.8%
CAGR from 435 million units in 2016 to 418 million units in 2021.
Augmented reality and virtual reality revenues will increase 130%
year on year to US$13.9 billion in 2017. Car electronics and
communication accessories market is expected to grow at 5.7%
CAGR in terms of value to over US$100 billion by 2024. SMT market
will grow at an 8.9% CAGR to US$5.4 billion by 2022.

With above background in mind and the increasing awareness
by the industry to move from traditional manufacturing to smart/
automated production, we will continue to invest and expedite our
automation and software offerings. We will also strive to work closer
with our partners and the development of new partners to come up
with more competitive and innovative solutions. We will continue to
invest in our service and support infrastructure and systems so as
to attain total customer satisfaction and customer retention as well
as improved operational efficiency. At the same time, we will also
closely monitor our working capital, gross profit margin, operating
cost and industry developments with a view to maintain our cash
flow and profitability, as well as the long term sustainability and

growth of our business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

Finance Leasing Division

As of the end of 2015, the total number of finance leasing enterprises
in China was about 4,508 companies and the overall scale of the
finance leasing business had a compound growth rate of more than
50% in the past three years up to end of 2016. The finance leasing
industry played an important role in optimization, transformation and

upgrading of China’s electronic manufacturing industry.

We expect that our finance leasing division can capture the
opportunities offered by the emerging demand in upgrading of
manufacturing industry and launching of “Industry 4.0” initiative
in China. Leveraging on the Group’s financing platform in Hong
Kong and extensive industry experience especially the high-tech
manufacturing industries, the Group’s finance leasing division will
continue to provide finance leasing options to customers of our hi-
tech distribution and services division to suit their financial needs
and seek opportunities to provide finance leasing and related
services to other customers in the manufacturing industry in China

with a view to generate a new source of revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR DA

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group generally finance its operation with
internally generated resources and banking facilities provided by
its principal bankers in Hong Kong. As at 31st March 2017, the
Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowing (2016: Nil). As at
31st March 2017, the Group had banking facilities of approximately
HK$676,105,000 (2016: approximately HK$796,379,000) from
several banks for trade financing. As at 31st March 2017, banking
facilities of approximately HK$146,910,000 were utilised by the
Group (2016: approximately HK$244,894,000). These facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees of approximately HK$676,105,000
(2016: approximately HK$860,727,000) provided by the Company.
At 31st March 2017, the Group had held-to-maturity investments in
corporate bonds at amortised cost of approximately HK$46,419,000
(2016: HK$72,343,000), which provided a stable investment
return. All held-to-maturity investments held were denominated
in United States dollars with maturity dates within 1 year from
the end of the year. As at 31st March 2017, the Group had total
assets of approximately HK$1,230,709,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,294,194,000) and total liabilities of approximately
HK$387,501,000 (2016: approximately HK$479,862,000). The
gearing ratio of the Group, which was calculated as total liabilities
over total assets was 31.5% (2016: 37.1%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2017, the guarantees given by the Group to
certain banks in respect of performance bonds and bid bonds in
favour of certain contract customers amounted to HK$3,262,000
(2016: HK$2,118,000).

NET ASSET VALUE

Consolidated net asset value per ordinary share attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately HK$0.44
as at 31st March 2017, increased by HK$0.01 from approximately
HK$0.43 as at 31st March 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March 2017, the Group employed 289 (2016: 291)
staff. Salaries and annual bonuses are determined according to
positions and performance of the employees. Remuneration policies
are reviewed annually by the management and remuneration
packages are structured to take into account the comparable level
of the market. The Group provides on-the-job training and training
subsidies to its employees in addition to pension schemes and
medical insurance. Total staff costs from continuing operations
including contribution to retirement benefit schemes incurred
during the year amounted to approximately HK$90,662,000 (2016:
HK$86,007,000 (restated)).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s contractual commitments are primarily related to the
operating lease commitments of its office premises and certain of its
office equipment under operating lease arrangements. The Group’s
operating lease commitments amounted to approximately HK$19
million in aggregate as at 31st March 2017 (2016: HK$20 million).
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Zhang Yifan

Ms. Zhang Yifan, aged 36, joined the Company in November 2014
as an executive Director. She was further appointed as Chairlady
of the Company on 23rd June 2016. Ms. Zhang had completed a
diploma in International Business from Shanghai Ocean University.
She is also the chairlady of nomination committee and a member of

remuneration committee of the Company.
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

Mr. Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming, aged 52, joined the Company in
February 2015 as an independent non-executive Director. He was
re-designated as an executive Director on 24th February 2016.
Upon Mr. Tsui’s re-designation, he was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Group’s hi-tech distribution and services
division. During the period from January 2006 to May 2014, he
has been an executive director, the chief financial officer and
company secretary of International Mining Machinery Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 1683 until 2013. He has
comprehensive financial experience ranging from external audit,
internal audit and tax to financial controllership. Mr. Tsui graduated
from the University of Lancaster, UK with a Bachelor degree in
Accounting and Finance. He then obtained his Bachelor of Laws
degree from University of Wolverhampton, UK. He further obtained
his Master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from the London
School of Economics & Political Science, UK and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of Southern California,
U.S. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1995 and the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants since 1995.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, aged 62, joined the Company in
February 2013 as an independent non-executive Director. His
appointment was continued for another three years commencing
from 19th February 2016. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of LifeTech Scientific Corporation, a company
previously listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with a stock
code of 8122 and thereafter transferred to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with a stock code of 1302, with effect from 22nd
October 2011. Mr. Liang served as special consultant on campus
development at United International College (“UIC”) in Zhuhai, the
PRC since October 2011. He was the executive vice president —
Finance of TWS Industrial (Holdings) Ltd since 6th October 2011, a
private company engaged in battery production. He later acted as
consultant from August 2013 to December 2013. He returned to full
time teaching as associate professor at UIC on September 2013.
Mr. Liang has extensive experience in finance and accounting. From
October 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Liang was the managing
director of the financial planning and development department
at UIC and was responsible for serving financial advisory and
human resources management functions. During October 2005 to
December 2008, he was a director at Shenzhen Alclear Consulting
Limited, a company engaging in financial, corporate management
and investment consultancy services, and was responsible for
developing accounting training in the PRC. Between August 2001
and October 2005, Mr. Liang served various roles at Skyworth
Digital Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with a stock code of 751, including as the group’s
financial controller and company secretary in charge of finance and
management information system functions. From November 1993 to
August 2001, he was the finance manager at Hongkong International
Terminals Limited for Yantian International Container Terminals, both
companies being container terminal companies managed by the
Hutchison Port Holdings Trust. During the period from June 2014
to June 2015, Mr. Liang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of China Animal Healthcare Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of
940. Mr. Liang completed a diploma in business management from
Hong Kong Baptist College in December 1977. He also obtained a
Master’s degree in Professional Accounting from University of Texas,
Austin in May 1981. Mr. Liang later obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Language and Translation from Hong Kong Open University in
December 2007. Mr. Liang is a member of the Texas Society of
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
since June 1982 and Association of Certified Chartered Accountants
(ACCA) since May 1982. Mr. Liang is the chairman of the audit
committee and remuneration committee. He is a member of the
nomination committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, aged 55, joined the Company in
February 2013 as an independent non-executive Director. His
appointment was continued for another three years commencing
from 19th February 2016. He was appointed as a director and
deputy chief executive of Dan Form Holdings Company Limited
(“Dan Form”) in October 1994, and re-designated as its non-
executive director in October 2012. Dan Form is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 271 and owns
significant property interests in Hong Kong. Between 1999 and
2007, Mr. Kon was also an independent non-executive director
of Jingwei Textile Machinery Company Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code of 350.
Mr. Kon has been involved in the planning of many large-scale
investments and development projects in the PRC and Hong Kong
and has over 27 years’ experience in investment and management
in manufacturing industries and property development. He also
has extensive experience in securities trading, corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions and corporate restructuring. Mr. Kon
graduated from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom with a
Bachelor's degree in Business Studies in 1987. Mr. Kon is a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination

committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, aged 56, joined the Company in
February 2013 as non-executive Director. He was re-designated as
an independent non-executive Director on 4th March 2016. Mr. Chan
has 30 years of experience in commercial and investment banking
and asset management. He is a founding partner of Oriental Patron
Financial Services Group which was founded in 1993. He is also
an executive director, principal and responsible officer of Oriental
Patron Asia Limited, the corporate finance arm of Oriental Patron
Services Group. Oriental Patron Asia Limited is also the investment
manager of OP Financial Investments Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 1140.
Mr. Chan has also been appointed as the chairman, executive
director of Kaisun Energy Group Limited, a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 8203 since
September 2008. Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of
HNA Infrastructure Company Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 357 since
October 2007. From January 2010, Mr. Chan has been a director
of Hong Kong Energy and Minerals United Associations and
was appointed as executive vice chairman since January 2016.
From January 2015, he is the chairman of Silk Road Economic
Development Research Center and a director of China Hong Kong
Economic Trading International Association since September 2015.
Mr. Chan holds licenses of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 6
(advising on corporate finance), and Type 9 (asset management)
under the SFO (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). He received
Master of Science Degree majoring in international marketing from
the University of Strathclyde, Bachelor of Science Degree in Aviation
Management from Coventry University and a Diploma in China
Investment and Trade from Peking University. He is a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee

of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Li Zhen, Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Li Zhen, aged 45, joined the Company in December 2014. He is
responsible for the operations of finance leasing division. Mr. Li has
over 20 years of experience in project management such as nuclear
power plant construction; and in particular he has rich experience
in project management, company daily operation, investment and
financing management. He holds a Business Administration master
from Tsinghua University and a bachelor's degree in Engineering

from Nanhua University.
Law Wai Fai, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Law Wai Fai, aged 49, joined the Company in June 2013. Mr.
Law has extensive professional experience in financial management,
investor relations, company secretarial and corporate governance,
in particular over 16 years of accounting and company secretarial
experience at listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Ong Kay Huat, Chief Executive Officer of American Tec
Company Limited

Mr. Ong Kay Huat, aged 50, joined American Tec Company Limited
(“American Tec”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
August 2010. Mr. Ong has over 28 years’ working experience in the
electronic industry. He has worked for electronic EMS company,
SMT and semiconductor equipment supplier and distributors,
software and service/solution providers. Prior to joining American
Tec, he was the President of Far East for Valor Computerized
System Far East Limited (“Valor”). Prior to joining Valor, he had held
various senior management positions with increasing responsibility
in Panasonic, Universal Instruments and Siemens. Mr. Ong holds
two master degrees in Business Administration and International

Marketing Management with Macquarie University of Australia.
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The Company endeavours to maintain high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders, and follows the
principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprice Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules” ).

The Board will continue reviewing and updating its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure compliance with

applicable codes and standards.

Throughout the year ended 31st March 2017 (the “year”),
the Company complied with all the Code provisions with the
exceptions addressed below and, where appropriate, adopted the

recommended best practices set out in the Code.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Board’s decisions are implemented
under the leadership of the Chairlady with the involvement and
support of the chief executive officer(s) and general manager(s) of
the Company’s operating companies. The Board believes that the
balance of authority and division of responsibility are adequately
ensured by the operations of the Board and management which

comprise experienced and high calibre individuals.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, being an independent non-executive
Director, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 6th September 2016 due to other important
engagement at the relevant time. However, the Chairlady of the
Board and the Chairmen of all the other Board committees attended

the said annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required

Standard during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31st March 2017, the Board comprised of five Directors,
with two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive Directors represent more
than one-third of the Board. The composition of the Board during

the year is set out as follows:
Executive Directors

Zhang Yifan (Chairlady)

Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Biographical details including changes of information of current
Directors are set out in the section of “Profiles of Directors and

Senior Management” on pages 17 to 21 to this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times every year to determine
overall strategic direction and objectives and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results, budgets and other significant matters.
At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings are given to all
Directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from formal meetings,
matters requiring Board approval are also arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions. Senior management from time
to time provides to the Directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of

matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’'s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or Director arise, the matter is discussed in a Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director
has a conflict of interest, the Director should declare his interest

and abstains from voting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

Eight Board meetings and one general meeting were held during
the year with an average attendance rate of approximately 98% and
80% respectively. The attendance of each Director at the Board

meetings and the general meeting are set out below:

BE®24)

SERERHERR

RAFEER  HBT \AEFeemh—IBRE
AEg FHHBEED R AI8% K 80% - F&E
EHEEFEe R MERAS ZBREATINT ¢

Directors’ attendance/meetings held
BEEHE I BTERH
Annual General

Board Meetings Meeting
EEEggR BREBERE

Executive Directors HITES
Zhang Yifan w—R 8/8 1/1
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming ®EHR 8/8 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse REER 8/8 1/1
Kenneth Kon Hiu King TS 7/8 0/1
Joseph Chan Nap Kee PR a7 B 8/8 1/1
Roles and responsibilities ABHER
The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the %%ﬁﬁ BEEREEANT c FEREEER

Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic
development of the Group with the goal of maximizing long-term
shareholders’ value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.
Given the diversity and volume of the Company’s business,
responsibility for execution and daily operations is delegated to

management.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. All the
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s

affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities (continued)

During the year, the executive Directors were responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s operations. These
Directors conducted regular meetings with the senior management
of the Company and its subsidiaries, at which operational issue
and financial performance were evaluated. The non-executive
Directors provided the Company with a wide range of expertise and
experience. They brought advice and judgment on issues relating to
the Group’s strategy, performance, risk and management process,
and corporate governance through their contribution at Board and

committee meetings.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Independence

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had
at least three independent non-executive Directors. Amongst the
independent non-executive Directors, at least one of whom had

appropriate financial management expertise.

Each current independent non-executive Director had given the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board considered all current
independent non-executive Directors to be independent under the
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules. Up to the date of this
report, the Board has not been aware of the occurrence of any
events which would cause it to believe that their independence has

been impaired.
Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Continuing Professional Development (continued)

The Directors are from time to time provided materials on
amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company has been encouraging the
Directors and officers to participate in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the GEM Listing
Rules, applicable regulatory requirements and corporate
governance practices organized by professional bodies and/or
independent auditors to further improve their relevant knowledge

and skills.

During the year, all Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending seminar relating
to corporate governance and regulations or by reading materials
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. The participation by

individual Director during the year is set out below:

BExg#)
FREXBR(E)

EETHEREMEREE - RAIRMOLZERT K
BHRAZER  NEREEHEHESSFY
HMERBBZER - ARR—ESBHESERER
}\%%EﬁiﬂﬂE%@@&/Eﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁlﬁfﬁﬁ@ﬁzﬂ
BAMAIXRETMRA EREERERERE
A %‘“%EZE;%%JEE%&&EHET%‘ LA — R
EASRE A S B BE o

RAFER 2REFCEBLFERHLEER
&%EWIJZEE*ﬁ@EEF)ﬁEEﬁF«%EH‘E‘%%&%&ZE
£ 2EEEREEEEREY  c RAFER -
1I%‘J§$Z%§53$/R%WUZZDT

Read regulatory Attend conference/

updates/materials ~ seminars/workshop

MEEE 4=

BFME &R WiE/ IS
Executive Directors HTES
Zhang Yifan w—M 4
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming RER 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse RER
Kenneth Kon Hiu King FEY
Joseph Chan Nap Kee PR v 4

Insurance

The Company arranges, and will review annually, appropriate

insurance cover in respect of legal against its Directors and officers.
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CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Throughout the year, the Company had Ms. Zhang Yifan to assume
the role as the Chairlady of the Board, with no chief executive
officer. The Board’s decisions are implemented under the
leadership of the Chairlady with the involvement and support of the
chief executive officer(s) and general manager(s) of the Company’s
operating companies. The Board believes that the balance of
authority and division of responsibility are adequately ensured
by the operations of the Board and management which comprise

experienced and high calibre individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the existing non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period
of three years unless terminated by either party with one
month’s written notice. All the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings in

accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
nomination committee, remuneration committee and audit
committee. All these committees have their respective terms of
reference which accord with the principles set out in the Code

contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
Nomination Committee

During the year and up to the date of this report, the nomination
committee of the Company comprised of not less than four
members at all the time, and the majority of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King, Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee; and Ms. Zhang

Yifan, the Chairlady and an executive Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of directors, evaluation of board size, structure and composition,
management of board succession with reference to the board
diversity policy and certain guidelines including appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics,
integrity and personal skills, and time commitments of member
and assessing the independence of non-executive directors. The
Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
nomination committee which are aligned with the provisions set out
in the Code. The terms of reference of the committee setting out
its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the
websites of the Company and the GEM.

During the year, the committee review the board composition, board
diversity policy and retirement of Directors by rotation and made
recommendations to the Board. One meeting was held during the
year with an attendance rate of 100%. The attendance of each

nomination committee member during the year is set out below:

EERES(#)
REZEE(H)

REZECGAAESEZEEIUNEZLILBERKLE
EERMBRITELR - BEART  #iE - BAA
REERK EIRAREEE THES  HEBEERE
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- HAEZBEERR BEMETZBESR
BRI RAR B REIEREER

RAFER  ZEERTESEKNE 2AK &
EFERBZTMBRNRESFCHFEEER  XAE
ERRNER ANFENGET REHE - %X
BRIHEER/I00% c RAFERN » FREE
BgREBHEGERZBEREINWT

Nomination
Committee
members’
attendance/
meetings held
REEES
REHE
BITERAH

Zhang Yifan w—M
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse REG
Kenneth Kon Hiu King T
Joseph Chan Nap Kee PR a7

11
11
11
1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

During the year and up to the date of this report, the remuneration
committee of the Company comprised of not less than four
members at all the time, namely Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse (who
serves as the committee chairman), Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, and
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, all being independent non-executive
Directors; and Ms. Zhang Yifan, the Chairlady and an executive
Director. The Board has adopted a set of the terms of reference of
the remuneration committee which are aligned with the provisions
set out in the Code. The committee has adopted the model where
it has delegated responsibility to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the
Non-executive Directors. The terms of reference of the committee
setting out its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on

both the websites of the Company and the GEM.

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy and
overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management. It takes into consideration of factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions of directors and senior

management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In addition to the committee meeting, the remuneration committee
may also deal with matters by way of circulation. During the year,
the committee reviewed and determined the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Two
meetings were held during the year with an attendance rate of
100%. The attendance of each remuneration committee members

during the year is set out below:

EERES(#)
FMEES(#E)

REEggHIN  FTHEE AT UAFEHARE
HEIE - RAFERN  ZEFERAREERR
RAEFRABEBABZEHIES  ZMAEH
ZHFEEREI100% - RAFEN - SHWEES
REHEEZZIEREIMOT

Remuneration
Committee
members’
attendance/
meetings held

FHMZEES

REHE

BITERRE

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse RER 2/2
Zhang Yifan w—l 2/2
Kenneth Kon Hiu King TFEY 2/2
Joseph Chan Nap Kee v 2/2

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

For the year ended 31st March 2017, total Directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$6,549,000 (2016: HK$8,695,000).
Remuneration of the executive Directors is prudently designed to
attract, motivate and retain them to formulate strategies and to
oversee operational matters of the Group and to reward them for
enhancing value to the shareholders. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors for the year are set out in note 8(b) to the

accompanying financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEZEg#)
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management (continued) BEENEREBABZEFMNE)

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior RAFE  BAFALEESHREREENKE (1T
management of the Group other than the executive Directors for the BERIN ZFHBET ¢
year is as follows:

For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Basic salaries and allowances BERE & RER 5,224 6,312
Bonus TEAL 2,714 2,581
Employer’s contribution to retirement {& 3 7 R {Kat 2%
scheme 80 45
8,018 8,938
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Remuneration by band FMER
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 870 — 2,000,000/%& 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 T — 3,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 87T — 4,000,000/87C 1 1
3 4
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company’s
audit committee comprised not less than three members at all time.
The members of the audit committee comprised Mr. Joseph Liang
Hsien Tse (who served as committee chairman and has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters), Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King and Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, all being

independent non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the audit committee to align with the provisions set out in the Code
in March 2016. The committee’s principal duties are to ensure
the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial
controls of the Group, oversee the performance of internal control
systems, risk management and financial reporting process, monitor
the integrity of the financial statements and compliance with
statutory and listing requirements and to oversee independence and

qualifications of the external auditor.

The audit committee meets at least four times a year to discuss any
area of concern during the audits or reviews and at least twice of
the meetings shall be with the external auditor. The audit committee
reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board. Senior representatives of the external auditor,
executive Directors and senior management are invited to attend

the meetings, if required.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the year, the audit committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was content
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group are in
accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. Six
meetings were held during the year with an average attendance
rate of approximately 94%. The attendance of each audit committee

members during the year is set out below:

BEEZEEH)
BREEgG(E)

REAFER  BRZESCIAELTERZZME
LEE UWEEASECZFE  PHRFENE
WwE - BmMBEASEEZSECR READFEE
BRBZEEER RAFERERITAAE
F TPTHHEBRAENM% - RNAFER  &F
ZZEgXERREERIBERAEIWT

Audit Committee
members’
attendance/
meetings held

ERZEEY

REHE

BITERRE

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse RER 6/6

Kenneth Kon Hiu King FrES 5/6

Joseph Chan Nap Kee PR a7 6/6
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EERBEE

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate EFTSRBEERTLEERBRE 81 (a)

governance duties including: (a) to develop and review the FIET R AR A EEERBELER (b )

Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. During the year, the Board reviewed

the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for the audit of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately HK$2,080,000 (2016: HK$1,650,000)
and fee for non-audit related activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$530,000 (2016:
HK$540,000).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management

in performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
Risk Assessment System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system

comprises the following phases:

. Phase 1: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and

risks that could affect the achievement of objectives

o Phase 2: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly

o Phase 3: Consider the risk responses and ensure effective

communication to the Board
. Phase 4: On-going monitor the residual risks

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2016, no significant

risk was identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(continued)
Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components
and main features of the framework are shown as follow:

Control Environment

o Proper structures, reporting lines and appropriate authorities
and responsibilities in the pursuit of objectives are

established.
Risk Assessment
o Changes in risk that could significantly impact the system of

internal control are identified using the abovementioned risk
management system.

Control Activities

o Formal policy and procedures, such as financial reporting,
revenue and receipts, are established, implemented and
communicated throughout the Group.

Information and Communication

o Proper safeguards are established for handling and
dissemination inside information. For example, confidentiality
agreements are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations, and the executive Directors
are designated to speak on behalf of the Group when
communicating with external parties such as the media,
analysts or investors.

Monitoring

o Internal control deficiencies are communicated to the
responsible departments in a timely manner for taking
corrective action.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2016, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

The abovementioned risk assessment and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(continued)
Internal Auditor

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and

tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the
Board/ Audit Committee afterwards.

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system through the following processes and

subsequently reported the review results to the Board:

. discussions with the executive management on areas of risk
identified

. review of risks reported by the internal audit department

. review of the external audit plans

. review of issues reported by external auditor

. review of the reports from the internal audit department, the

executive management to ensure appropriate controls are in

place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

Based on the result of the review for the year ended 31st March
2017, the Board considered that the risk management system and
internal control system of the Group, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function, and their training
programs and budget, are adequate and effective and have

complied with the provisions of the Code during the year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Chairlady, the Board and
Board committees by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary reports to the Board and assists the Board in
functioning effectively and efficiently. He also advises the Board on
governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of Directors. All Directors of the Company may call
upon the company secretary for advice and assistance at any time
in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board

and the Board committees.

Mr. Law Wai Fai is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company. He is a full time employee of the Company and had
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Law undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the

year.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) in
September 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity

on the Board in order to enhance the quality of its performance.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a

diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and independence. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of the Policy and review the Policy annually to
ensure the effectiveness of the Policy. The nomination committee of
the Company will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and

approval.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meeting of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The requisition must be

lodged with the Company’s registered office.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director of the Company are set out in the Company’s
Bye-laws and also available at the Company’s website at
www.nasholdings.com. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the company
secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at 18/F, Shanghai Commercial Bank Tower, 12 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board adopted a shareholders’ communication policy which
aims at providing the shareholders and potential investors
with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. The Company has established a
number of channels for maintaining an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders as follows: (a) corporate communications such as
announcements, annual reports, quarterly reports and circulars are
published and available on the GEM website at www.hkgem.com
and the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com; (b) corporate
information is made available on the Company’s website; (c) general
meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior management,
and the poll results of the general meetings are published on the
websites of the Company and the GEM; and (d) the Company’s
share registrars serve the shareholders in respect of share
registration, dividend payment, change of shareholders’ particulars

and related matters.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

During the year, the Chairlady of the Board, the chairmen of the
Board committees and external auditor attended the annual general
meeting held on 6th September 2016 to answer questions from
shareholders. One Director was unable to be present at the annual
general meeting due to other important engagement at the relevant

time.

The Company’s memorandum of association and Bye-laws is
available on both the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com
and the GEM website at www.hkgem.com. The Board is unaware of
any significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which gives a true
and fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standards are selected and applied

consistently.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the independent auditor’s report on pages 53 to 61 of this report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerate effort to
strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate governance

of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have the
pleasure of presenting their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of North Asia Strategic Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st March 2017 (the “year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year, save as the Company disposed its mining

consulting business on 4th November 2016.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, a fair review of the business of the Group, an analysis using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, which can be found
in the Management Discussion & Analysis set out on pages 8 to 16
of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this director’s

report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by
operating segment for the year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 62 and 63, respectively, of this

annual report.

DIVIDENDS

On 8th June 2017, the Board declared a special dividend of
HK$0.06 per ordinary share, approximately HK$114,900,000 in
aggregate. The special dividend will be payable to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Tuesday, 27th June 2017.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31st March 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of the members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 23rd June 2017 to Tuesday, 27th June 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the special dividend. In order to qualify for the special dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22nd June 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March 2017, the reserves available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$505,819,000 (2016:HK$538,855,000).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and equity of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual

report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year.

DONATION

The Group has not made any donation during the year
(2016:HK$31,500).

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the provident fund schemes are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Zhang Yifan (appointed as Chairlady on 23rd June 2016)

Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Joseph Chan Nap Kee

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Ms. Zhang Yifan and Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King shall retire from
office by rotation and be eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out

on pages 17 to 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2017, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company and their respective associates had any interests and
short positions in the securities of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by

Directors.
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company

pus

5

B

1

LA TR KA KRG 2 EHE K

\=B -+ E=A=+—RB REERAATR

BITBABMA TIAL(BEERARARES
TTERABBRINRARRRG &, B G+
BBEEIARBES M EHRIIFE 336 1KAFE
ZIZRRBRMAZERIAR

REXARG R, REBRDZHE

Approximate
percentage of

holding of

Number of Number of shares and

Name of Shareholders/ ordinary underlying underlying

Convertible Bondholder Capacity shares held shares held shares held

FERR

B3R AR AR AE 2 P FriE1EE FristEE R 2

BFEABS i-3) EEREE B #E BHEDH

(Note b)

(BfiFb)

Lu Ying Beneficial owner 1,016,876,428 240,000,000 65.63%
[z HisEA A (Note a)
(Hfita)

C.L Davids Fond og Samling Beneficial owner 106,178,010 — 5.54%

BEamlEAA

Notes: Wizt -

(a)  These underlying shares arise from the convertible bond (the (a)  WFRERIR 17 T3E 48 % 5773 60,000,00087T.2 AT 4
“Convertible Bond”) in the aggregate amount of HK$60 million TREH (AR EE ) TEL - AR IERIZITH
which upon full conversion will result in an issuance of 240,000,000 BB 0.25 T (A] FHE ) DE L HEE - EE
conversion shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.25 (subject to 77240,000,000 i 52 #1815 ©
adjustment).

(b) The above approximate percentages of shareholdings are based (b) FRERZEHE S TRER -E—+E=H
on 1,914,997,244 ordinary shares in issue as at 31st March 2017, =+ —HE77.21,914,997,244 1 Z iR T IE 2
not on the total number of issued shares upon full conversion of the BT D M A R R (& 1 D E ST IR P A B o
Convertible Bond.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive of B EYEIESEN R E—t+F=HA=+—

the Company were not aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who has any interests or short
positions in the securities of the Company that were required to
be entered in the register of substantial shareholders of the the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st March
2017.
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EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year

or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:
Convertible bond

On 20th August 2014, the Company issued convertible bond,
which has principal amount of HK$60 million and a maturity date of
21st August 2017. The convertible bond bears zero interest and is
unsecured. Details about the convertible bond are set out in note 23

to the consolidated financial statements.
Share Option Schemes
1. Share option scheme of the Company

On 4th September 2014, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2014
Scheme”). No option under the 2014 Scheme has been

granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed since its adoption.

The major terms of the 2014 Scheme are summarized as

follows:

(1) The purpose of the 2014 Scheme is to reward
participants who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole.

(2)  The participants of the 2014 Scheme are the employee,
agent, consultant or representative of the Company or
any subsidiary, including any executive or non-executive
Director of the Company or any subsidiary or any other
person who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,

have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
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EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

1.

Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

(3)

(4)

(5)

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2014 Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the ordinary shares in issue on the date of approval of
the 2014 Scheme (the “Scheme Limit") or as at the date
of the Shareholders’ approval of the refreshed Scheme
Limit.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all option granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2014 Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company shall not,
in aggregate exceed 30% of the ordinary shares in
issue from time to time. As at the date of this report, the
maximum number of ordinary shares of the Company
available for issue under the 2014 Scheme was
191,499,724 shares, representing 10% of the issued

share capital in the Company.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each grantee under the 2014 Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue for the

time being.

The exercise period of any option granted under the
2014 Scheme shall be determined by the Board but
such period shall not exceed 10 years from the date of

grant.

1.

R Rt R ()
B BI(E)

(3)
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EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) REH (A
B2 ()

ARAZIBRES B (E)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

1. Share option scheme of the Company (continued) 1.

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

The 2014 Scheme does not specify any minimum

holding period.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
under the 2014 Scheme (“Offer”) must be made within
5 business days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to that participant
together with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00
from each grantee.

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company shall be determined by the

Board but shall not be less than the higher of:

a. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must

be a business day;

b. The average closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

C. The nominal value of the ordinary shares on the

date of grant.

The 2014 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on its adoption of the
2014 Scheme on 4th September 2014.
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EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)
2. Share option scheme of the subsidiary

On 31st October 2006, the Company approved a share
option scheme (the “Best Creation Scheme”) adopted by
Best Creation Investments Limited (“Best Creation”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, allowing its board of
directors to grant options to subscribe for in aggregate a
maximum of 6,000,000 ordinary shares in Best Creation to
the selected participants under such scheme as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Best Creation group. The
Best Creation Scheme has a life of ten years commencing on
the adoption date of 31st October 2006. It was expired on
31st October 2016. During the year under review, no share
options have been granted pursuant to the Best Creation

Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or a connected
entity of such Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Schemes”,
neither at the end of nor at any time during the year there subsisted
any arrangement to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and the objects of or one of the objects of such
arrangement are/is to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

SE R E)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that every director of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses shall or may incur or sustain by
any act done or in the execution of their duties as a Director of the
Company, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
such Director. Directors Liability Insurance is in place to protect the
Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors in

the executive of their duties.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2017, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective close
associates has engaged in any business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of

interests with the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 29% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 10% of the
Group’s total turnover. The five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 80% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
74% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers noted above.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31st March 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued ordinary
shares as at the date of this annual report.

INFORMATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Zhang Yifan. Ms.
Zhang is the Chairlady and an executive Director of the Company.
The biographical details of Ms. Zhang are set out on page 17 of this

annual report.

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Law Wai Fai. He is
also the chief financial officer of the Company. The biographical
details of Mr. Law are set out in section of “Profiles of Directors and

Senior Management” on page 21.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out on pages 22 to 40 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 have
been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
Zhang Yifan

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 8th June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

P>
EY:

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 188, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31st March 2017, the Company
had goodwill of HK$373.7 million
relating to the cash-generating
unit (“CGU") of hi-tech distribution
and services. In accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets,
management is required to test

goodwill for impairment annually.

We focused on this area because
this impairment test and assessment
is based on the recoverable amount
of the CGU as determined in a value-
in-use calculation, which required,
significant management judgement
with respect to pre-tax cash flow
projection based on financial budget
approved by management covering
a five-year period. The projection
is largely based on management
expectations and estimates of future
results of the CGU.

Disclosures in relation to goodwill
are included in notes 4 and 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Our audit procedures included
the assessment of the valuation
methodology and the key
assumptions, such as the
continuance of distribution rights of
high-tech distribution and services
operation, budgeted gross margin
and the discount rate based on
our knowledge of the business and
industry.

We checked the input data to
supporting evidence, such as the
approved budgets and the recent
historical results of the CGU. We
performed sensitivity analysis for
the recoverable amount of the CGU.
We also assessed the adequacy
of the disclosures in the financial

statements.
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To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Recoverability of trade and bills receivables and finance lease receivables

As at 31st March 2017, the Group
had trade and bills receivable
and finance lease receivables of
HK$121 million and HK$176 million,

respectively.

We focused on this area because
significant judgement is required with
regard to recoverability assessment
of these receivables, with reference
to management's assessments on
debtors based on their repayment
history, financial position, reputation,
future transactions and relationship

with the Group.

Disclosures in relation to trade and
bills receivables and finance lease
receivables are included in notes 4
and 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

We assessed the Group's
processes and controls relating
to the monitoring of receivables
to identify objective evidence of

impairment.

Our procedures included obtaining
direct confirmations on a sampling
basis, checking the aging of
receivable balances, the debtors’
historical payment patterns and
the bank receipts for the payment
received subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. We also
checked to evidence including
correspondence between the
parties involved for the latest
progress of the outstanding
balances and credit status of

these debtors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

M % B AW ¥R B

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Fair value measurement of the derivative component of a convertible bond

On 20th August 2014, the Company
issued a convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$60
million to Million Land Limited, an
independent third party, for the
partial settlement of the acquisition
of Dragon Mining Overseas
Limited. The convertible bond
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial statement
of the Group is bifurcated into two
components, namely, the liability
component and the derivative
component, of which the derivative
component is classified as a
financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss which should be
remeasured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. As
at 31st March 2017, the fair value
of the derivative component of
the convertible bond was HK$0.2

million.

We focus on this area because
significant management
judgements and estimates are
involved in the subsequent
remeasurement of the derivative

component of the convertible bond.

Disclosures in relation to
convertible bonds are included in
notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

To assist with management’s
determination of the fair value
of derivative component of the
convertible bond, the Group
engaged an external valuer. As
part of our audit procedures,
we considered the objectivity,
independence and competency of
the external valuer. In addition, we
have assessed the reasonableness
of the assumptions, methodology
and parameters adopted in
the valuation, in particular, the
risky discount rate adopted. We
also assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures relating to the
assumptions given the estimation
uncertainty and judgements
involved and their sensitivity to the

valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBEARE

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

% SR ¥R

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A RS

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

8th June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GERBER

Year ended 31st March 2017 B —ZE—+F=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
——t% e
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
At FRET FiET
(Restated)
(gE=5)
Continuing operations BEQEER
Revenue A ) 1,295,754 1,235,797
Cost of sales SHER A (1,086,142) (1,060,379)
Gross profit EA 209,612 175,418
Other income and gains, net HEA RS - F58 6 2,605 4,950
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDIHER (102,045) (92,337)
General and administrative —RERITHER
expenses (75,040) (77,287)
Operating profit 48  F| 35,132 10,744
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative  AJHRRESEITET A D 2
component of convertible bond DhEks(EE) 3,432 (1,205)
Finance income BRI A 9 5,797 2,997
Finance costs % ER 9 (1,471) (2,510)
Profit before income tax from BB EET 2 RS TR
continuing operations i ) 7 42,890 10,026
Income tax expense s it 10 (8,133) (7,753)
Profit for the year from continuing FRFBELEEL 2 5 A
operations 34,757 2,273
Discontinued operation RIEEER
Loss for the year from a FR—IBRIEEEETR
discontinued operation 2 B8 11 (4,136) (273,603)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREF(EE) 30,621 (271,330)
Earnings/(loss) per share IR T i R AR R (S R
attributable to ordinary AF,/ (EE)
shareholders of the Company €]
Basic HAR
— For profit/(loss) for the year — FREF,(E5E)
(HK cents) GEN) 1.60 (14.25)
— For profit for the year from — BEEEEEZFR
continuing operations s A CEML)
(HK cents) 1.81 0.12
Diluted e
— For profit/(loss) for the year — FREF,(EER)
(HK cents) GEN) 1.32 (14.25)
— For profit for the year from — RBEREERZFER
continuing operations s A CEML)
(HK cents) 1.51 0.12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOM|

mEETHEWRER

Year ended 31st March 2017 B —ZE—+F=A=+—HIFE

——
2017 2016
—EB—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) for the year FRHEF(BE) 30,621 (271,330)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hfh 2wl
Other comprehensive income to be REZBEEEF S EEBRZZ
reclassified to profit or loss in HEM2mEks
subsequent periods:
Currency translation differences of HINETS 2 BMIME Z R
foreign operations (1,745) (851)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAEMEREWNE - RERIER
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX OF NIL R (1,745) (851)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAZEKERLTE
THE YEAR 28,876 (272,181)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR &

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FETL
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MRS 14 10,385 6,828
Intangible assets mREE 15 373,692 373,692
Held-to-maturity investments SRR E 16 — 32,241
Trade and other receivables B 5 I W SR IE T H b UL
FIA 17 75,752 41,438
459,829 454,199
Current assets REEE
Held-to-maturity investments BFEEHKRE 16 46,419 40,102
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABRZ SR
through profit or loss BE 18 38,244 —
Inventories FE 19 4,405 5,156
Trade and other receivables B 5 M GRTE & H b FE Uk
A 17 301,821 202,091
Cash and cash equivalents HekRESEMEER 20 379,991 592,646
770,880 839,995
Total assets EEHE 1,230,709 1,294,194
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to shareholders 72 7] IR R EGEZ
of the Company
Share capital (&N 21 19,150 19,150
Reserves i 22 824,058 795,182
Total equity R 843,208 814,332

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FETL
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Liability component of convertible ARRESZBBHBD
bond 23 59,454 —
Derivative component of AMRES Z2HTETH
convertible bond 2B 23 241 3,673
Trade and other payables E S RNRIER
H A BT FRIE 25 292,498 376,321
Income tax liabilities S8 &E 11,866 34,719
364,059 414,713
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Liability component of convertible ARRESZBEBHBD
bond 23 — 58,155
Deferred tax liabilities RETIBEEE 26 494 494
Deposits received B it 27 22,509 5,961
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREBBE 439 539
23,442 65,149
Total liabilities BEHAE 387,501 479,862
Total equity and liabilities EmREEAE 1,230,709 1,294,194
Net current assets REBEERE 406,821 425,282
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZABERABEE 866,650 879,481
Approved by the Board of Directors on 8th June 2017: RZZT—EFANANBEEESHOE

Zhang Yifan
’—IR

Chairlady and Executive Director

FTERNTEF

Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

HEH

Executive Director

HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31st March 2017 B —ZE—+F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A TRREN
Share capital Reserves Total
&S @& mct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(note 22)
(Bt 22)
Balances at 1st April 2015 RZZE—AFWMA—H
2 EERR 16,150 1,040,195 1,056,345
Comprehensive income 2HE K
Loss for the year FREE — (271,330) (271,330)
Other comprehensive income A2 EHzs
Currency translation HINETE 2 B
differences of foreign bt
operations — (851) (851)
Total other comprehensive Hth 2 E W 25
income — (851) (851)
Total comprehensive income FRZMEKZHEATE
for the year — (272,181) (272,181)
Issue of shares (note 21) BTG (HiE21) 3,000 27,168 30,168
Balances as at 31st March RZT—RF
2016 —A=+—Bz&#% 19,150 795,182 814,332

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZSBR

Year ended 31st March 2017 B —ZE—+F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR B RRIEA
Share capital Reserves
R s
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FETT FET
(note 22)
(HtsE22)
Balance as at 1st April 2016 RZE—R"FHEA—H
2R 19,150 795,182 814,332
Comprehensive income el
Profit for the year F 1A 5 7 — 30,621 30,621
Other comprehensive income — E 2 E K7
Currency translation BINETE 2 B ME
differences of foreign =%
operations — (1,745) (1,745)
Total other comprehensive HirmmkaEE
income —_ (1,745) (1,745)
Total comprehensive income SRZHEWFEHATE
for the year — 28,876 28,876
Balances as at 31st March RZT—tF
2017 ZA=t—HZz#&&% 19,150 824,058 843,208
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2017 B —ZE—+F=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
H st FET FET
Cash flows from operating RETB2HERE
activities
Net cash flows (used in)/ BEFR(ER) /EEZ
generated from operations WemEFHE 28 (184,247) 125,099
Interest paid ERFLE (172) (839)
Mainland China corporate income B B At SRS E
tax paid (666) (422)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNEBFEH (11,644) (6,728)
Net cash flows (used in)/ from KEEBA(ER) EEZ
operating activities RemEFHE (196,729) 117,110
Cash flows from investing RETH2HERE
activities
Additions of property, plant and NEME - BEREE
equipment (8,246) (5,487)
Proceeds from disposals of HEYE - BRERE&HE
property, plant and equipment Z TS 5kE 669 2,600
Interest received B U F 8 4,779 2,519
Receipts upon maturity of note W E S 2 FrilsiIE
receivable — 47,502
Purchases of held-to-maturity BERZIHRE
investments (6,317) (72,343)
Receipts of held-to-maturity BHEEHRE 2 FTiGE
investments 32,241 —
Purchases of financial assets at BERBEREARE
fair value through profit or loss R S REE (155,652) —
Receipts of financial assets at fair BBEEEARESRZ
value through profit or loss SRVE E 2 T ERIE 117,408 ==
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEH B A 24 — 1,848
Cash and Cash equivalents BHE —TERILEE T
disposed of in respect of the FIHEzRERBAEE
disposal of a discontinued (ERERE]
operation 11 (416) —
Net cash flows used in investing REEZBFERZ
activities BEREIFHE (15,534) (23,361)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2017 B —ZE—+F=A=+—HIFE

2016
—ZT—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FAET
Cash flows from financing AMETB2EERE
activities
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN Z TS 3K0E — 30,168
New bank loans FILIRITE K 374,284 193,693
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER (373,266) (211,129)
Net cash flows from financing MEEHFIEELEZ
activities HemEFE 1,018 12,732
(Decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEEEE
cash equivalents PAC- Ve Vi (211,245) 106,481
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzHRSRBELEE
beginning of year EHA 592,646 486,995
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEEZSB2HE
changes, net R (1,410) (830)
Cash and cash equivalents atend SR ZHEERBREZE
of year HAE 379,991 592,646
Analysis of balances of cash and BRERREZEHER
cash equivalents R
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 20 322,951 457,474
Non-pledged time deposits with REVE R RET R HA B
original maturity of three months A=EASAT
or less when acquired 2 AR R TE BB TE AR 57,040 135,172
Cash and cash equivalents as R E M BMRR KT
stated in the consolidated ZReRREEE
statement of financial position HH 379,991 592,646
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally

engaged in the following businesses during the year:

° hi-tech distribution and services: trading of surface
mount technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and provision of related
installation, training, repair and maintenance services

for SMT assembly equipment;

. mining consulting: provision of advisory services in
mining exploration, exploitation and valuation services
for mergers and acquisitions projects (discontinued on
4th November 2016);

. finance leasing: provision of finance to its customers
via a wide array of assets under finance lease

arrangements; and
. investment holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”). The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and that of its principal place of
business is 18th Floor, Shanghai Commercial Bank Tower, 12

Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s board of directors on
8th June 2017.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars about the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name and business
TMAL

£ ERSES Sk

American Tec Company Limited Hong Kong

ELEFHRBRAA BE

NAS American Tec (Suzhou) Co., People’s Republic

Limited (i) of China (“PRC")/

EEET R (BN BRAF (ii) Mainland China

HE AR (HE])
/R

North Asia Strategic (HK) Limited (i) Hong Kong
R (FE)BERAF() BE

1. LEREEERE)

EEMBARZEN

Principal activities

TEEH

Trading of SMT equipment
and investment holding
SMTREE 5 R IR E R

Trading of electronic
products, machinery
and spare parts and
provision of repair and
installation services

BTEM RERTHM
EHNRRELEER
ZERRS

Provision of management
services and investment
holding

REERRE MR EER

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRATLER/
R

HK$60,000,000

60,000,000 7T

US$1,000,000
1,000,000% 7T

HK$1
1787T

BEARRAREZMBRAZFBNT

Percentage
of equity
interest
held by
the Group
KB
RERSL

100%

100%

100%
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name

&%

IBETEFRE(RINERAA (i)

(“NAS American Tec (Shenzhen)
Co Limited”) (if)"

North Asia Financial Leasing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (i)
T TREBE(LE)BRAF i)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
EMAL
EPES S

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B

PRC/Mainland China
B/ R E R

1. LEREEERE)

EEMBARZEN(E)

Principal activities

TEEH

Trading of electronic
products, machinery
and spare parts and
provision of repair and
installation services

ETEmR  BERTHMT
BHURRMEEE R
ZE RS

Provision for finance
leasing services

REURERERY

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER/
EMRA

US$1,000,000
1,000,000% 7T

US$30,000,000
30,000,000 T

Percentage

of equity
interest
held by
the Group
AEBERE
RERDL

100%

100%




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Notes:

(i) Shares of this company are held directly by the Company.
Shares of the other companies are held indirectly.

(i) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC
Law.

The English name of this entity represents the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese
name as no official English name has been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and the derivative component of convertible bond,

which have been measured at fair value.

TEREEER (#2)

FEME AR 2ER(E)
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REW SV BRI EA 2 EZGFEHE
HRTX - A EERIN  BEBRRERN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14,
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, amendments
to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain amendments included
in the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, which
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements, the nature and the impact of the

amendments are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation
and disclosure in financial statements. The

amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(ii)  that specific line items in the statement of
profit or loss and the statement of financial

position may be disaggregated;

(iii)  that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial

statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently

reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss. The
amendments have had no significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.

2.

EXRSTEERBEZ)

2.2

B ERERRESE R ()

RESMEHRELERE 1098 - BH
IS REEAE 12 REBSTE
AlE 285 (=T ——F)Ea] - &%
B HREERNE115RE] - BAY
BRELAFE 145 BE LR
F16H BB G ERE 415 E
i) BAGFERFE 7R (=T ——
FIBTRFINR_TE——ZFE=
T-NFRARACFERENZET
& 5T BN &2 B B 755 S 3k 2 i B f
SN REBRIZHEERFEHBAN
T
(a) BEGFTERNEIRBITHE
HUBRENZHRREEEHRE
RESTHMNE - ZEER]E

=g

() BTESEUFIRA
MBERMME

(i) BRREUBRAILEZA
ZEEBREATAD

(i) EEARZFZ2IITBEER
EWENIRFES B
"R

(iv) ERESEEARNDIG
BERARALAELED
HtemEbabBIER
EREAERAZ A
BrEgesteHiSs
MOBREBRRRNZE
EEEEITERA

BEAN - RE BT AREB R
AR RBEERAZ 5NN
AIRERANRE - ZREEFTAR
HAKBEMMBRELEES
EREATE -

2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT %3

75



76

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation

of depreciation of its non-current assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(c)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to

a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments

are as follows:

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies
that changes to a plan of sale or a plan
of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the
date of classification of the non-current
assets or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Group did not have any
change in the plan of sale or disposal
method in respect of the disposal group

held for sale during the year.

2.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2017 — & —
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRS
1 included in Annual
Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS
12 included in Annual
Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS
28 included in Annual
Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle

January 2017

January 2018

January 2019

for adoption

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments®
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

Leases’

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Transfers of Investment Property’

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1st April 2018. The Group is

currently assessing the impact of the standard.

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at
fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held
as available for sale will be measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income as
the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option to present fair value changes in
other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income for the

equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or

loss when the investments are derecognised.

2.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income and
lease receivables, that are not accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9,
to be recorded based on an expected credit loss
model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis. The Group expects to apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present value of
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade and other receivables. The Group will
perform a more detailed analysis which considers
all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking elements, for estimation
of expected credit losses on its trade and other

receivables upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the

amendments are available for application now.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 15 on 1st April 2018.

The Group is in the process of performing a detailed
assessment of the potential impact of the application
of HKFRS 15. The Group is expected to include more
comprehensive disclosures as required by the new
standard. In addition, contracts that contain two or
more performance obligations will be accounted for
separately and this might have an impact on the pattern

of revenue and profit recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1st
April 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of

HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 — & —

R =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the

amendments from 1st April 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured
at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments clarify
that an entity, when assessing whether taxable profits
will be available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax law
restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it
may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in
which taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group

expects to adopt the amendments from 1st April 2017.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —&=—+&=H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31st March 2017. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities

of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting

rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the statement
of profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss

is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 — & —
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as a gain

on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31st March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 — & —

2.

S e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.
Fair value measurement

The Group measures the derivative component of
convertible bond at fair value at the end of each

reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in

prior years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 — & —
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(0

(if)

(iiif)

or

has control or joint control over, the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 — & —

2.

S e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors who make

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s

functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance income”
and “finance costs” respectively. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss within “other income and
gains” and “general and administrative expenses”,

respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 — & —

R =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as part of the fair value

gain or loss.
Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the entities
within the Group (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 — & —

2.

S e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over joint
ventures that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the ordinary shareholders of the Company are

reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and is
not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to the statement of profit

or loss.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated

impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant

and equipment comprises its purchase price and any

directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EXRSTEERBEZ)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 210 Y% - BERRME(E)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. Their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 2 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
Plant and machinery and 3 to 10 years

demonstration machinery

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10

2.12

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Customer relationships and distribution agreements are
shown at historical cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value
as at the date of acquisition. The Group’s intangible
assets have finite useful lives and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of customer relationships and distribution
agreements is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Customer relationships 3 to 4 years
Distribution agreements 3 years

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,

but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases,
an amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in the
statement of financial position as loans and accounts
receivables. Any unguaranteed residual value is also
recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference
between the sum of the minimum lease payment
receivables, initial direct costs, the unguaranteed
residual value and their present value is recognised as
unearned finance income. Unearned finance income
is recognised over the period of the lease using the

effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
Investments and other financial assets
2.14.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
as held-to-maturity investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments,
rental and other deposits and cash and cash

equivalents.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2142 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair
value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEABHEEBESE)
POLICIES (continued)

214 RERAEMERMEE(E)

2.142 Subsequent measurement 2.142B#: 8

2.14 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.

B REWHE

ER R EWFIARHEF L IER
R I5 WME 2 B E Sk A EE
RBZIFTEEREE - RE
RETB1R REEEHRUE
R ) ROR A% 8 3 A AN HO B A (]
HERETE - BERADE
At RAEMBR BT ESOR ERET
B UEREEERMEIAK
REF D 2 BRI - BIEF
TEH T ABBRR Z B
A BEMELZEBBENER

FFEAHRE

JUSE A &I € 35 7T 8 7E 5K IR S Y
BEEHE EAEEGRARE
BERMENFEERNHAE 2k
MESREE  ADERKE
B HERHREHLRUE
R ) R OR AR 35 B AN H R A AT
BERBTE - BERANE
At R BT E SR B R FT
5 UBREBERMEAK
BRER D 2 BRSKA - BERF
K@t ABRERP ZHB
WA < SRIERTEL < BIER
BERRARER o

2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT %3

101



102

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each of the reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral

has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

the statement of profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Financial liabilities

2171 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings, or as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, convertible bond, and borrowings.
Trade and other payables are repayable upon
receipt of invoices and credit terms granted by

suppliers are up to 90 days.

2.17.2 Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Financial liabilities (continued)

2172 Subsequent measurement (continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a
liability in the statement of financial position, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible
bonds, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs.
The carrying amount of the conversion option is
not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are

first recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% 9 % KT e,

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEABHEEBESE)
POLICIES (continued)

217 SREEE)

2.17.2H2#58 (%)

2.17 Financial liabilities (continued)

2172 Subsequent measurement (continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

If the conversion option of convertible bonds
exhibits characteristics of an embedded
derivative, it is separated from its liability
component. On initial recognition, the derivative
component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components
of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially
recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

2.17.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.
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2.

R =

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.20

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less, and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits

which are not restricted as to use.
Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares

are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Ordinary
shares and non-redeemable preference shares are

classified as equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

S e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective

interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facilities to which they relate.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of each reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

EXRSTEERBEZ)

2.22 Fri8®i(4&E)

MERRVEREZEEDEHERRSE
ERIREE -

e (MELHEABHRVISHER—
BRG(WIEBEN) 2E
SEEHBEMEE - RRR
SE - REHRBEA B SR
FERTIERTELE &

s MEAMBARZKEAHEZ
ERRERZREMS @ HEH
ER 7 DR FEARES - M
EREREANRBRAETS
[ 5

EIERIRE E LT A AR 2 B
ZR  HERYARBERARREIM
ABAHRABEERAR - RER
THE B Th 3L A] BB R AR B s A
AHREREZRE #EAPAYN
TR % S oK BY P A TR S 48 4 5 T
W

s EBIEBEEERYIHER A
R (WIFEBE) 2 EEK
BEMEEZINRERESR
B MRRHE - ELEFHE
BESGT R ERB R
WREE &

s HERMBRARNZKREEMZ
AHREREZEREMS - EER
TRE AR A R R 2R AT Ak [ 3
REERMSFERERER
MR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Income tax (continued)

2.23

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.
Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long
service leave is recognised when it accrues to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity

leave is not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Employee benefits
(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays contributions to
state/trustee-administered funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised

as employment costs when they are due.
(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount

has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration

received or receivable for the sale of goods and

services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to
the customer, and the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured or when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of

goods have been passed to the buyer.

Commission, service and management fee

income

Commission, service and management fee income
is recognised when the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual services
provided as a proportion of the total services to

be provided.
Finance leasing income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the net investment of the finance
lease or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the net investment of the

finance lease.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 — & —

2.

R =

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

2.27

Revenue recognition (continued)
(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion

basis using the effective interest rate method.
(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been

established

Advance payments received from customers prior to
the delivery of goods and the provision of services are

recorded as receipts in advance.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they

are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 — & —

S e

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the finance
department of the Company under policies approved
by the board of directors. The finance department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The board of directors provide written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,

and investment of excess liquidity.
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollar (the “US dollar”),
Japanese Yen, and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Management has set up a policy to require
entities within the Group to manage
their foreign exchange risk against their
functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the

entity’s functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated

in the relevant foreign currencies.

The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US
dollar at a range of rates between 7.75 and
7.85, and therefore the foreign exchange
exposure between the US dollar and the

Hong Kong dollar is limited.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant
operating units, with other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of

monetary assets and liabilities).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2017

If Yen weakens against HK$
If Yen strengthens against
HK$

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against
HK$

If USD weakens against RMB
If USD strengthens against
RMB

2016

If Yen weakens against HK$
If Yen strengthens against
HK$

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against
HK$

If USD weakens against RMB
If USD strengthens against
RMB

fisi A B X B Tz B
fisi B B L B T IHE

HWARB L ETRE
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=T HAREFHE
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fisi B B 5. T iz (B

fist B B BT E

W AREEETRE
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fHETHEAREERE
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MEERERE)
3.1 MBEABRERE)
(a) HEmEE(E)
(i) SMNER ()

Increase/

(decrease)

in profit

before tax from

Change in continuing
exchange rates operations
FEKEXEB

BRBE AR 48 0,

ER#E (m2)
% HK$'000

% T

15 (161)

15 161

7 1,336

7 (1,336)

7 (9,488)

7 9,488

20 8,072

20 (8,072)

5 (624)

5 624

5 (4,375)

5 4,375
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets at floating rates except
for cash and cash equivalents, its income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The cash and cash equivalents earn interest
at floating rates and expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

The finance lease receivables earn interest
at fixed rates and expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk from financial liabilities
arises from borrowings. Borrowings that are
subject to variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, finance lease receivables and

certain other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and an appropriate percentage
of down payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group implements
its industry risk management system according
to its plan based on actual situation with a focus
on industry research, customer credit rating,
and understanding of the lessee’s operations
and financial condition. The Group also obtained
deposits from lessee as disclosed in the note
27 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spreading over a number of

counterparties and customers.

The carrying amount of the receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets. The
credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
is considered by the Group to be minimal as the
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

3.

I LBy B ()

3.1

BmBREE(E)
(b) FEmREME

EERBRERERECEE
HEH - EH5EWIE AR
& e Wk IE o T A FE MR
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VA R R i A N 2 375 e BA 75
ARSL o SR ANAR & B 765 3% B o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

No credit limits were exceeded during the year
and management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by counterparties. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security except for
finance leasing operation, which in the event of
default, the Group may demand return of finance
leasing assets, repossession of finance leasing
assets or disposal of finance leasing assets,

whichever appropriate.
Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit

lines.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises
undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.

3. BXKRBREEZ)
3.1 UBEBERE)

(c)

On demand or

mBELmE(E)

TRUABEHAREGHIHA
ZRISERE R ERE - REHA
HAKESRBBEETON -
RAFMKRE 2 RBRAKIRE

HRERE -

less than 1to5

1 year years Total
BRERZ—FUR —-Z28fF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

At 31st March 2017 R-ZE-+tH=A=+-H
Trade and other payables B SN FIE R E AR 285,882 — 285,882
Deposits received Biize 6,616 22,511 29,127
Convertible bond AR ES 60,000 - 60,000
352,498 22,511 375,009

At 31st March 2016 R-ZE-<"¥=A=+-H
Trade and other payables B SN TRIERE M IR 374,468 - 374,468
Deposits received Bz 1,853 5,961 7,814
Convertible bond aRES — 60,000 60,000
376,321 65,961 442,282
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from last year, was to
maintain net cash position, which is the cash and cash
equivalents less bank borrowings, if any. The net cash
positions as at 31st March 2017 and 31st March 2016
were analysed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents and net R&NMIREEEERAMESE
FEEAR (H 5 20)

cash position (note 20)

3.

MBRAREER®)

3.2

EXEBER

AEBEEREAZ BRI RERER
SERAEBERBEFBELEEEL
2 NBIERREEREAMEDE
M UREREEZERNRER
DEBRRA -

REFIFARELRRE  ~NEEA
HERNERZEE2E  RAKRE
BREEXR BOFBRHRLEERE
IE

REBE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HItF
B AKEaREFIRE  G5F
Befi RS RBASFEEAR
RITEE(WE) - R-F—LF=AH
=t+t—BR-_ZE—RF=H=+—H

ZEREHRADWET -
2017 2016
—E2—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
379,991 592,646
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEREREE)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 ERMIAZARBERAABER
instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s rEEemIT AREERARES
financial instruments, other than those with carrying HBEEERIN ZERERAAED
amounts that reasonably approximate to their fair values, T

are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
AREE AAE

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T&T FET TET

Financial assets SREE
Held-to-maturity BEIERE
investments 46,419 72,343 46,756 72,239
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DR E
2017
=E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHT FHETL FHT FHETL
Financial liabilities ERBE
Liability component of AR EF 2
convertible bond BEFHS 59,454 58,155 56,627 49,021
Management has assessed that the fair values of BEEEETE RekReZEEE
cash and cash equivalents, the current portions of B - BVERE 5 & Y338 K H fh B UL
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables FIE - B SN FRIE R E AL 3K
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to Bz ARBHEEMBERS  £EH
short term maturities of these instruments. RZEFITAREHREIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
corporate finance team reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of finance lease receivables have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The carrying amounts of finance lease receivables
approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
relating to investments in short-term money market fund

are based on quoted market prices.

The fair value of the derivative component of
convertible bond is the difference between the fair
value of convertible bond and the fair value of liability
component of convertible bond, i.e., present value of the
liability component of convertible bond. The fair value
of convertible bond has been estimated using valuation
techniques for which inputs with a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are not based on observable
market data. The Group’s derivative component of
convertible bond is categorised in Level 3 (2016: Level
3) of the fair value measurement as at 31st March 2017.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —&=—+&=H=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of the derivative component of the
convertible bond:

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input
fEERT EXTABE
BAHE
Convertible bond Trinomial option Risky discount rate
AmRES pricing model 2 fez B 3R
ZEA BT ERE
Unlisted financial N/A Estimated return
assets at fair TEA rate
value through ERIEEES

profit or loss
BRAREFABRZIEL
merREE

The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
the statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the

reporting period.

MBREREEE)

3.3 SRMIAZARERAALEER
(#&)
UTATRRESTETABS 2
BEZER TR BEH AZEHRE

Sensitivity of
fair value to
% the input
% DAEHEABE
ZEHRBE
16.16 0.5% (2016: 0.5%) increase/
(2016: 15.72) (decrease) in discount rate
16.16 would result in decrease/
(ZZ—"E:  (increase) in fair value by
15.72) HK$2,000 (2016: HK$25,000)

2.8

2.8

BERE LA/ (TH)05% (=%

—REF :05%)BEHRARE

wd/(E0) 2,000 ( =%
—73% © 25,000 7T)

3% increase/(decrease) in
estimated rate of return
would result in a increase/
(decrease) in fair value by
HK$174,000 (2016 Nil)

st EREIL I, CR D) 3% 158
BAREEM,/(RD) 174,000
BIL(ZE—A~F: T)

EERE UMEERDBLZAHAAE
(ERMBIRRARAR) RAAREZ RS
PEREEXRAR)HABAE X ANR
SRRz ZEEEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MEBEBREE#Z)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 ERMIAZARBERAABER
instruments (continued) (&)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHERAEEERMITAZAAE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: HEEL
Assets measured at fair value: INARBEFEZEE
As at 31st March 2017 R-—ZB—tF=HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AATHSEETZARETE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EATEE EARFUEE
mHERE BARE BARE
(#&51—) (A=) (BA=)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value  EAAREF AR
through profit or loss ZERMEE 32,600 — 5,644 38,244
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 BitE22&EHm
during the year are as follows:
2016
ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABERZ
through profit or loss: TRVEE
At beginning of year REH] - =
Additions NE 5,644 —
At end of year L 5,644 —
The Group did not have any financial assets measured RZEBE—XR"F=ZA=+—H &%
at fair value as at 31st March 2016. BEUETAMAARBEFEZERE

= o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
S 75 A B & -~

31st March 2017 = E—+t®=H=+—H = e
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEREREE)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 ERMIAZARBERAABER
instruments (continued) (&
Liabilities measured at fair value: NARBEGFEZERE
As at 31st March 2017 R-_ZE—+tF=H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
FMATHRBETZARBETE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATEE EAXTTEE
miERE BARE BARE
(#7B1—) (&BI=) (A=) Fob
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative component of RRERZITE
convertible bond TAHS — — 241 241
As at 31st March 2016 R=ZZB-—XF=ZA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
FATSEETZ AR ETE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAABRE EBATAIHE
miZRE A BUR B ABUR
(& 51—) (#p1=) (BB1=) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Derivative component of ARRERZITE
convertible bond TAHD — — 3,673 3,673

2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT 3§ 127



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEKREEE)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 ERMIAZARBERAABER
instruments (continued) (&
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 TR =RAEFERFRAZEEM
during the year are as follows: N
2017 2016
—e—+% ——A%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FT FET

Derivative component of convertible A #& &% 2

bond: T/T/EEI,\EIIS
At beginning of year REH] 3,673 2,468
Fair value (gain)/loss recognised in MR AFER
the statement of profit or loss AR B,/ EiE (3,432) 1,205
At end of year REL 241 3,673
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA peBEERSHBEENS
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BA—EBRR — AR EHEZRAL
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets mEEL - WA =NMEQAAETESE
and financial liabilities (2016: Nil). AREL (ZT—RF - |&) -
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BRI HE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are AEBERBEATLEHRIEMAXR(BIELET
based on historical experience and other factors, including EABATHEBEEZRKREMH 2TEE)
expectations of future events that are believed to be FRERT R AT 2 (5T R A e

reasonable under the circumstances.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom reflect the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation/
amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation/amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
where it will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and

therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.
4.2 Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in note 2.4 and note 2.6 to the financial
statements. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-
generating units which are reviewed for impairment
based on forecast operating performance and cash
flows. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value
in use calculations. Cash flow projections are prepared
on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective
of prevailing and future market conditions, and are

discounted appropriately.

BEEsH e RHEw)

AEE SR 5 RBR - B2 E
sHESHNE TS - RO B REAMER
2 BERABRERAY T —HRER
EERABEDEEL AR HEHR
BRI o

4.1

4.2

NE BEERRBUREFLEEZ
AERFHRFRER

AEHEEEETEYME  BEK
REAREBLEEZ AT AR EF
B FEENRAETE EHHE
o WIRMARBALNEE RN
ME BMERREAREVEEZ
ERATEAFHZBELREL -
WA A FERRERMATFRR
EoRERESRINNE (R
X TEMFEIMBAEEZAKH
EZRMELIGERBEE - BER
B FHIT B B AR AT E A HT
[ ¢ i & BRI 64 (B (E 7 B &2 5t R
BREENR - E R AT G AT T
EFHRNSKEERE  HimkE
ARREFZ T ER °

AE R ER

REBRBI B MRM T 2.4 KT
265 2GR BFRAABE
BEBHREMRE - 3R ERHm
o OMREREDOEEMEBIRS
EEEMN - MABEMDRERNE
BRALFACRERIEE - BE
R EEL BN Z RO S RILE
REEFELEE - BERERA
BAURRBITRARTRZ A ER
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.3

4.4

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite
lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of a similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer demand and competitor actions. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting

period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.5

4.6

Estimated recoverability of trade and other

receivables, including finance lease receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables including
finance lease receivables, based on an assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is
based on debtors’ repayment history, financial position,
reputation, future transactions and relationship with
the Group, which requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at the

end of each reporting period.

Presentation of convertible bond and fair values of

convertible bond

As described in note 23 to the financial statements, the
convertible bond of the Group are presented as the
derivative component and liability component of the

convertible bond in accordance with HKAS 39.

The fair values of convertible bond are determined
using valuation techniques. The inputs to the models
are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of estimation
is required in establishing fair values. The estimation
includes considerations of inputs such as adjustment
factors to the risk-free rate, stock price, credit risk,
dividend yield and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair values

of convertible bond.

As at 31st March 2017, the fair values of the derivative
component of the convertible bond and the carrying
amount of the liability component of convertible
bond were HK$241,000 (2016: HK$3,673,000) and
HK$59,454,000 (2016: HK$58,155,000), respectively.

4.

BEEsH e RHEw)

4.5

4.6

EZREWHREREMERRA(BRE
BMEEERWIE) 2GR mE

AEEEEERHE S RBEFER
H o et 5k IR (B HE RS B /e Wk
) AU B 2 BTG E R WA 2
AR - LR ETDRBEBA
ZIEFREL BN - BE R
KR RERSEZBEEL I
FEEAAE kG  EERERS
REMREMHARARME -

g ESEZ 25 FARATHRR
BEQINE

0B 7 R M R 23 P - IR R
ERGFTEAEIW  AKE A
BERES T2 AT BBRES 2T
ETAMOREERS -

AMREFZ AABIANAGER
HETE - EAlfE2BRT @ Z5HE
BB ABBREATBER 25
WARTAIAT » BIRFESL A 7t E R A
LT BAMGFTREZSEZER
ABE - MEERRAE - RE -
EERR - BREERE KK IE 2
BRAZ - FEZEEZ2RENE
FAES - KeFERRESZ
BEERA/AME -

RZFE—+t&F=A=+—8 " A&
BEHFTETAERBOZAARER
TREREHFABRBIZEEES
Al 241,000 T(Z T — N F ¢
3,673,000% T ) & 59,454,000 7T
(ZZ—7<% : 58,155,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.7

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to tax losses, depends on management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.8

Classification between finance leases and operating

leases

Leases are required to be classified as either finance

leases (which transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership, and give rise to asset and liability

recognition by the lessee and a receivable by the

lessor) and operating leases (which result in expense

recognition by the lessee, with the asset remaining

recognised by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being

classified as a finance lease include the following:

the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the

lessee by the end of the lease term;

the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at
a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower
than the fair value at the date the option becomes
exercisable and, at the inception of the lease,
it is reasonably certain that the option will be

exercised;

the lease term is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset, even if title is not

transferred;

at the inception of the lease, the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased

asset;

the leased assets are of a specialised nature such
that only the lessee can use them without major

modifications being made.

4.

BEEsH e RHEw)

4.8 TRIMEHEKEHERZIE

HETRemMES(EBRAAE L
B8R BE oy LB e B 3 - AH A FERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
5.1 Revenue

Revenue represents sale of goods, commission and
other service income and finance leasing income. The
amounts of each category of revenue from continuing

operations recognised during the year are as follows:

5.

WARDEER

5.1

WA

WAEHEER - Ae REMBRY
WARBMEBRERA - REFEL
BEBZEHINBRARFRERZ
BEEMT

2017 2016
—g—tf e

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

(Restated)

(#=51)

Sale of goods HEER 1,265,364 1,222,156
Commission and other service e RHEMREHA

income 21,361 11,326

Finance leasing income BmEREWRA 9,029 2,315

1,295,754 1,235,797

5.2 Operating segment information 52 KESBER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two major reportable operating segments — hi-tech
distribution and services, and finance leasing. The
hi-tech distribution and services operating segment
derives revenue from the sale of goods, commission
and other service income. The finance leasing operating

segment derives revenue from finance leasing income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5.2

Operating segment information (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
income tax. The adjusted profit/loss before income
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
loss before tax except that finance income, finance
costs, fair value gain/loss from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as corporate and other unallocated

expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, other non-current assets,
inventories and trade and other receivables. Unallocated
assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-

maturity investments and corporate and others.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other
payables, deposits received and other non-current
liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise deferred tax
liabilities, income tax liabilities, convertible bond and

corporate and others.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,

plant and equipment.

5.

WARDEERE)
5.2 RESPERE)

EREENRESEAKBERED R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEERE)
(continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 EESFEERE)

RBE-F-—LFR-_FT-RF=
A=+—BU%FE KEOEHEL
BEAHE FARELEEBZ
mERBEID

Year ended 31st March 2017
BE-Z—tHF=A=1+—-HLEE

There are no significant sales between the operating
segments during the years ended 31st March 2017 and
2016. The operating results from continuing operations
for the year are as follows:

Hi-tech
distribution Finance
and services leasing
operation operation
EREER ~
PHER RS MEHE
£ %%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Revenue /N
— Sales to external customers — HINEPHE 1,286,725 9,029 1,295,754
Segment results VAEE< 62,492 1,294 63,786
Fair value gain on derivative MRREFTETAS D
component of convertible bond 2R BN 3,432
Finance income BB A 5,797
Finance costs BHER (1,471)
Corporate and other unallocated (¥ REMADEER
expenses (28,654)
Profit before income tax from REFBCEER 2R
continuing operations BEARR 42,890
Income tax expense Frisfiz it (8,133)
Profit for the year from continuing R EEERLEE 2 EE
operations il 34,757
Capital expenditure R 1,075 4,786 5,861
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ¥R EMADEEAR
capital expenditure 53 2,385
8,246
Depreciation e 1,624 775 2,399
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ¥R EMRHEITE
depreciation 879
3,278
Loss on disposal of property, HENME - BEREEE
plant and equipment S (407) — (407)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

WARZEER &)

52 RKESWERE)

Year ended 31st March 2016
BEZT - E=-A=+—HLEE

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Hi-tech
distribution Finance
and services leasing
operation operation Total
BERER -
A RIRH MEME
£ £ 1@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated)
(=51)
Revenue WA
— Sales to external customers — HINRFHE 1,233,482 2,315 1,235,797
Segment results NEEE 40,237 (2,330) 37,907
Fair value loss on derivative ATRREFTETIAS S
component of convertible bond 2 AR EEE (1,205)
Finance income BN 2,997
Finance costs MIEER (2,510)
Corporate and other unallocated ¥ REMADEER
expenses (27,163)
Profit before income tax from REFELEEB L
continuing operations BRFTAS R AT 10,026
Income tax expense Frig®is (7,753)
Profit for the year from continuing REHERLEL 2 FR
operations ikl 2,273
Capital expenditure BARHX 4,435 741 5,176
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R E A FER
capital expenditure 53 53
5,229
Depreciation ne 2,788 14 2,802
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ¥REMADEFE
depreciation 658
3,460
Corporate and other unallocated ~ H&E—FMBRARZb%
gain on disposal of a REA A Belias
subsidiary 1,848
1,848
Gain on disposal of items of HENE « BERRXEER
property, plant and equipment Bz 802 — 802
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER#E)
(continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESEER(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at the end of the RBERRZDBEEERBENT

reporting period are as follows:

138

Hi-tech
distribution Finance
and services leasing
operation operation
BRNEER
D ER RS MERE
£ £
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
At 31st March 2017 R-ZE—tF=AH
Er=0
ASSETS BE 509,911 250,526 760,437
Segment assets DEEE
Unallocated assets: AOEEE :
Financial assets at fair value BRREF B
through profit or loss TREE 38,244
Held-to-maturity investments REIHEE 46,419
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRkBEeSEER 379,991
Corporate and others RERHM 5,618
Total assets per the RAMBIRARAZ
consolidated statement of BEL
financial position 1,230,709
LIABILITIES 8B
Segment liabilities DEBME 237,525 76,783 314,308
Unallocated liabilities: APBERE
Deferred tax liabilities MLHIEQLE 494
Income tax liabilities NEH AR 11,866
Derivative component of —Hﬁﬁﬁ %ZME
convertible bond TAHH 241
Liability component of nRkEFE8E
convertible bond Bo 59,454
Corporate and others EREA 1,138
Total liabilities per the RAEMBIRARALZ
consolidated statement of BE®E
financial position 387,501

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED i3k
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Hi-tech
distribution
and services
operation
B RHRE G
5 38 % BR %
£
HK$'000
FET
At 31st March 2016 R-B-—XE=8
Er=[2
ASSETS BE 516,108
Segment assets DEEE
Unallocated assets: RABMEE
Held-to-maturity BERHEE
investments
Cash and cash RekFLFEERA
equivalents
Corporate and others REREAM
Total assets per the REMBRRARAZ
consolidated statement of BEBF
financial position
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities SEAR 367,291
Unallocated liabilities: ROBEBRE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEE G
Income tax liabilities s a R
Derivative component of MRRERZITE
convertible bond TAHS
Liability component of R ESz AR
convertible bond %)
Corporate and others ¥ REM
Total liabilities per the FEMBRARALZ
consolidated statement of BEGE

financial position

WARDBER (@)

52 RKESWERE)

Mining

consulting

operation

(discontinued

Finance on 4th
leasing November
operation 2016)
R A

ES 10N

—EZ-RE

+—AmA

B

BMEHEE £ )
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
81,185 25,941
11,934 1,646

Total

mst
HK$'000
FHET

623,234

72,343

592,646

5,971

1,294,194

380,871

494
34,719

3,673

58,155

1,950

479,862
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

The Group’s activities are conducted predominantly
in Hong Kong, Mainland China and the rest of Asia.
Revenue by geographical location is determined on the
basis of the destination of shipment of goods for the hi-
tech distribution and the location of the customers by
the finance leasing segment.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from continuing operations by geographical

5.

WARDBER (@)

HEER
(a) XKEHIEFZKUA

AEEXBETERETE  FEAM
REEMEMME T ETT - RWBNE
2B ARSHRERD HNE
EmZBMMEkRERENBER
ZFEHEEE o

TREHRKRMELEE D 2 AEE
ZFBIEEBWADHT -

location:
2016
—E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
(Restated)
(& E5)
The PRC including Hong Kong FER(BERE) 1,281,658 1,221,524
Asia — others oM — Efb 14,096 14,273
1,295,754 1,235,797

Non-current assets

The non-current asset geographic information is not
presented since over 90% of the Group’s non-current

assets are located in the PRC (including Hong Kong).

Information about a major customer

Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$125,838,000 (2016: HK$132,155,000) was derived from

sales by the hi-tech distribution and services operating

segment to a single customer, which accounted for more than

10% of the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. Htw ARz FHE
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net from AEEZHMWARKZE(FNGRIZTELE
continuing operations is as follows: B2
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FETL
(Restated)
(#=5)
Gain on disposal of obsolete HEREFTEZ =
stocks 99 1,264
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBRQ Rz W 24 — 1,848
Net foreign exchange gains HNEE Y 75 5 RE 2,301 1,767
Others HAh 205 71
2,605 4,950
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRAASHAER
The Group’s profit before income tax from continuing REERBFELEEB 2 RAGEH AN
operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): FEMBR(GTA)TFEIA -
2017 2016
—E—tHF T —RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o2 FET FET
(Restated)
(r&=31))
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAR 1,077,481 1,047,095
Other costs H A 8,661 13,284
1,086,142 1,060,379
Net foreign exchange gains HNEE Y 25 F 58 (3,319) (1,370)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREETE
and equipment 14 3,278 4,348
Employment costs 1B fER AN 8 90,662 86,007
Minimum lease payments under BiEKEHEE KBS
operating leases (BN 13,119 12,273
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME - BEMEREZ
property, plant and equipment, Bia () - FaE
net 407 (802)
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR AT & 2,080 1,650
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

An analysis of employment costs including the emoluments

of the directors and chief executive and the five highest paid

BB A
SEREEBZREBRA(BREELRES

2

TBRABZMERAEREHEALTZHE)

individuals from continuing operations is as follows: DT -
2016
—T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
(Restated)
(& E7)
Directors’ fees ER-Tok 1,200 1,529
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RMEREVHZ
in kind 84,940 76,096
Discretionary bonuses BB e AL 3,544 3,250
Termination benefits R R — 600
Retirement benefits — defined BINEF — REHEKETE
contribution scheme 978 4,532
90,662 86,007

(a)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the Group (the employer) and each of its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The monthly contribution of each of the employer and
employees is subject to a cap of HK$1,500 (2016:
HK$1,500) per employee and any further contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-operated
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The employees contribute fixed percentages of their
basic salaries as required by the local authorities while
the Group contributes a further amount as required
by the local authorities. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond these contributions. The
state-operated retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H
8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. f{EMEA#)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b) EERESTBRAEMS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BiE EWAHB BERAIERLE
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) K (f) &k & 2 =
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies (BBEENRER)RGIE 2 HBHKRE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ZERNEZN&EETHRA S H B
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as T
follows:
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contributions
and benefits Discretionary Termination to retirement
in kind bonuses benefits scheme
§e 2ER BRGHEZ
BNFE iR KRR ESE
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FiET FiET FiET TEx TEx
2017 “E-tE
Executive directors BiTES
Ms. Zhang Yifan F-MLt 240 1,500 1,500 - 18 3,258
Mr. Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming BEBLLE 240 2,160 153 - 18 2,571
Independent non-executive  BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King FESLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse REERE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kes BRuEEE 240 - - - - 240
1,200 3,660 1,653 - 36 6,549
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

8.

(b)

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. f{EMRA#)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b) EERBRETHRAEM&(E)
(continued)
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contributions
and benefits  Discretionary ~ Termination  to retirement
Fees in kind bonuses benefits scheme Total
o 2R BIRGHEZ
ik ENFla REEA LT BEER em
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET TE TE TET
2016 ZE-RE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ding Yi (‘Mr. Ding")" TEEE(TxED" 240 4,200 1,050 = 18 5,508
Ms. Zhang Yifan"” F-Rgt" 240 1,243 300 — 18 1,801
Mr. Pierre Tsul Kwong Ming" % ERR5%L A" 240 217 — - — 457
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. James Tsiolis"! James Tsiolis 4" 82 = = 120 = 202
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King TESEE 240 — — - — 240
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse ~ REA%AE 240 — — — — 240
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee" — Bir&%4Y 240 = = = = 240
Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming")  BERRERSE 4" 7 — — — = 7
1,529 5,660 1,350 120 36 8,695
There was no other arrangement under which a REBEZE—+ER T E=
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration A=+—BULtEE BEEEES
during the years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016. WEXRERBEMFH 2 AT

& Resigned on 31st March 2016

(ii)

and appointed as chairlady on 23rd June 2016

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

Appointed as executive director on 6th November 2014
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

(ili)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Appointed as independent non-executive director on 6th
February 2015 and re-designated from independent non-
executive director to executive director on 24th February
2016. For the year ended 31st March 2016, HK$220,000
was paid to Mr. Tsui for his capacity as independent non-

executive director.
Resigned on 17th July 2015

Re-designated from non-executive director to
independent non-executive director on 4th March 2016.
For the year ended 31 March 2016, HK$223,000 was paid
to Mr. Chan for his capacity as non-executive director.

Resigned on 10th April 2015

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest

in the Group for the year include 2 (2016: 1) directors

whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented above. The emoluments payable to the five

highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:

‘I’:‘I \ | :.’

8. EEMA&E)

(b)

()

ESRESTHRAEME(E)

& N-E—RAFE-_A NBEZTALEB
VIENMTER R-T—RF=A
T HBEBEBYATERALR
HITESZ - RBEE-_FT—~F=A
S+—BIEFEE RELEHRABY
FEHITEE S (H B 220,000 T

® R-B-AFLATLARE

© MNEZE—RF=ZANBAFNTES
HERBUERNTESR  REEZ
E-RFZA=Z+—HLEFE &
EEEREFFNTEEFNESIN
223,000/ 7T

L R-ZT—AEMNA+AEHT

EEREHFAL

AEERFAMe &R ZABALT
BEMB(ZE - F: —%)=E
2 HHMEER EXE2EHRZHTH
R FRARNEERSHFALZ
BT

2016

AN

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and bonuses ¥ - EE MIEAL 13,355 15,063

Discretionary bonuses ) IEIEAL 1,500 1,050

Termination benefits LR A — 480
Employer’s contributions to RINET 82 B E MR

retirement scheme 97 53

14,952 16,646
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. [EEHA&E)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (c) HEHEBEHFAL(E)
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell AR GTATHEETIS@ER

within the following bands:

2017 2016

=EB—tF SN

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A A#

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7C= 2,500,000 T — 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T2 3,000,000 7T 3 —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 %7t 2 3,500,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /7T = 4,000,000 7% 7T 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7 T2 6,000,000 57T — 1
5 8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9. MBUAREH
An analysis of finance income and costs from continuing BEKLER 2 MBERARER TN
operations is as follows: T 8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FET FEr
(Restated)
(&%)
Finance income: BIWA :
Interest income from bank RITFRZ FEBWA
deposits 1,758 1,513
Interest income from note FEWEE 2 F S A
receivable — 234
Interest in discounted amounts BER R ME S 2
arising from the passage of ALIR 52 F S
time — 484
Interest income from held-to- RBEIEBREZFE
maturity investments WA 3,021 766
Net foreign exchange gains on A R B HNE W e
financing activities R 1,018 —
5,797 2,997
Finance costs: BMBER :
Interest on bank loans RITERZFE 172 839
Amortisation of liability AR ESEERD
component of convertible pd 3
bond 23 1,299 1,274
Net foreign exchange losses on Bh & E B INE BT 1B
financing activities FEE — 397
1,471 2,510
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

Subsidiaries established in the Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China corporate income tax at the standard rate of
25% (2016: 25%).

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

The amounts of income tax expense from continuing
operations recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represent:

10.

FRrEBZH

AAFRHEPHAMNERERBEE_F
ZHF - FANEHRF ARG ERD S
MIEBE16.5% (ZF —RF : 16.5% )&t

s
H o
=A5F

PR B AR S 2 B X B R R 25% (=
T—RF 5% ZEEBERHATER
B o

BINEE KRR BRI MIASN) & F 2 TR TD
SRR Z b5t EEARDUE MR A R B L2 P
ERVAESR CRITERAREAE -

REEBRERARZFELEXBMENR
X &R

2016
2R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr
(Restated)
(s E5)
Current taxation & HHE
Hong Kong profits tax EENEH
— current year — RFE 6,611 7,243
Mainland China corporate income AR B b 1 TS A
tax
— current year — XFE 1,522 422
Deferred taxation (note 26) EIERLIA (A7t 26) — 88
8,133 7,753
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R MY EE

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contin

ued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax from continuing operations at the

statutory rates for the

jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective

tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

FREBTH (4#)

BARRRERIOMBARAERDEE
BERAEHERAEZERBECERTR
HANE N IR ER R RAE I RARX Z
8 URERBRE(ADEEREX) BER
MERZHRIT

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
(Restated)
(s E7)
Profit before income tax bR BT 15 25 Al v ) 42,890 10,026
Tax expense calculated at the RERNBBEREERER RN
average domestic tax rates FHEMBETEZ
applicable to profits in the TRIE R
respective jurisdictions 7,781 5,203
Tax effect of: MBTE
— income not subject to tax — AR 2 WA (3,910) (3,417)
— expenses not deductible for tax — Az 3,087 2,924
— tax losses not recognised — RERZBIBER 1,484 3,043
— tax losses utilised — BFR2HIEEE (309) —
Tax expense BB N 8,133 7,753

For the year ended 31st March 2017
applicable tax rate was 18.1% (2016:

, the weighted average
51.9% (restated)). The

change in the weighted average applicable tax rate is caused

by a change in the profitability of the
the respective jurisdictions.

Group’s subsidiaries in

RRE-F—+EZAS+—AILER -
BREMETEHER181%(ZF — %
1 51.9% (SEF))  MRMEFIHE
S8 TR A BE 2 AR EH B
ARZ BN EBHH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 4th November 2016, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interests
in Dragon Mining Overseas Limited and its subsidiaries
(the “Dragon Group”) and assign a loan from the Company
to Mr. Leung Kar Fai, a director of a subsidiary of Dragon
Mining Overseas Limited, who was not a connected
person of the Company as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules. The consideration was at HK$1. Dragon Group
was engaging in provision of advisory services in mining
exploration, exploitation and valuation services for merges
and acquisitions projects. The disposal of Dragon Group was
because the Group had streamlined its businesses and focus

on the operation of hi-tech distribution and services division

and finance leasing division.

Upon the disposal of Dragon Group on 4th November 2016,
the results from Dragon Group were no longer be included in

the Group’s results.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

11.

RZE-—R"E+—-—AWEA - XA A
I EE W& U EE H KBDragon
Mining Overseas Limited & H [ B &
Al([Dragon& B v 2= T HE
A QA #) —IF E 5 F Dragon Mining
Overseas Limited#) —H M E QAR ZE =
REBRE  RUFEARRBEALTCE
BREERETRAY) - RKERIBT -
Dragonts Bt F1IRMHBEX B &K - F &K
RHABEEEERS BEBRYE - HE
Dragon % & T3 [ 7K £5 [ % 62 45 8 H 3 75
REBEEREEHRE R RIRE D B EF

BEHENE -

mg A

RZZT—AF+—AMAB HEDragon%k
E 1 ' Dragon %k B 2 2 &K T BT AR
SEEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —&=—+&=H=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11. IR ()
2017
—E—+tF
HK$°000
FET
Net assets disposed of: FTHE 2 BEFME :
Trade and other receivables B 5 e MR IE K E At R U R IE 18,827
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEERR 416
Trade and other payables B 5 FE 5 5RIE [ Eth FE A< FRIE (720)
Income tax payables B ETEE (18,676)
(153)
Gain on disposal of a discontinued operation P AR AR 2 TS 2 s 153
Satisfied by: LA XA
Cash Be —
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents HERIEEEXBZAERASEFHEER
in respect of the disposal of a discontinued operation is as MEFEDT -
follows:
2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
FHET
Cash consideration REeERKE —
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FHEzRE RREEFEER (416)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEKEEEER 2SR
respect of the disposal of a discontinued REZEBEERD
operation FEE (416)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 1. RIEREEK @)
The results of Dragon Group for the year (up to the date of FNDragon & B(HEHERH) 2 £ E&
disposal) are presented below: E5T ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenue I ON 450 8,130
Cost of sales SHE AR (207) (1,834)
Other income and gains H A A R Wz 35 5,113
Finance income I ON — 6
General and administrative expenses —f& M1THE A (4,567) (39,475)
Impairment on goodwill [SEEAE — (243,593)
Loss before tax FRELRTEE (4,289) (271,653)
Income tax expense R — (1,950)
Loss after tax K& & 1B (4,289) (273,603)
Gain on disposal of a discontinued M —TER I EEE TS
operation 2 Was 153 —
Loss for the year from a discontinued  4F R —IEAR || 484 ¥ 7
operation Z B8 (4,136) (273,603)
Loss per share, from the discontinued RBE# HE&H 2 FREIE
operation:
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE CEN) (0.21) (14.37)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 =& —

11.

12.

S

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 1. RIEREEKE)
The net cash flows incurred by Dragon Group (up to the date DragonSE(EZHEFTHEAY ) ELEZ
of disposal) are as follows: REREFRELT ¢
2016
ZT—RF
Operating activities KRS (6,491) (13,155)
Investing activities HEEE — (258)
Net cash outflows W& F 58 (6,491) (13,413)
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the REKRIEEEXEBTRERNRBEEEEZ
discontinued operation are based on: FTE TR
2017 2016
SF Sy —2 A
Loss attributable to shareholders of REKLIEEEZER 2 R
the parent from the discontinued R ELEECET)
operation (HK$) (4,136,000) (273,603,000)
Weighted average number of ordinary Rzt EGREAR K #E
shares in issue during the year B FREBITERR
used in the basic and diluted loss InHE 5
per share calculation 1,914,997,244 1,903,521,834
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 8th June FEREBHRE K= ﬁ—‘tiz‘_\ﬁl)\ﬁ '
2017, the Board declared a special dividend of HK$0.06 per 22T MK RIREFRERER0.06
ordinary share, approximately HK$114,900,000 in aggregate. BT A /\?OTM 900, OOO/%TE "T"fﬁlj

The special dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 27th June 2017.

Apart from this, the Directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2017 (2016:
Nil).

H =) BHARRRIRR A M Z AR -

Rtz EETEBRERNEE=ZT—t
F=ZRA=+— HtifZﬂiHﬁﬁxg(:g
—NE ) e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
of HK$30,621,000 (2016: loss of HK$271,330,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,914,997,244

(2016: 1,903,521,834) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per shares for the year ended 31st
March 2017 was calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The convertible bond
was assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares,
and the profit for the year ended 31st March 2017 was
adjusted to reflect the interest expense on convertible bond

and fair value gain on the derivative component of convertible

bond less tax effect, if any.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts presented for the year ended 31st March 2016
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the convertible bond

outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings/

(loss) per share amounts presented.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

13.

BRER,(HE)
SREFEF(HHA)

BRERAF (BER) DB BEARNA AR
5 FE R AN E3% 130,621,000 (= F
—7N4F ¢ 538 271,330,000 8 70 ) B A A
BATE AR 2 I 15 801,914,997,244
B (=Z—75%F : 1,908,521,834 %) °

HE_Z—t+F=A=+—HILFEZSE
P #E AR TR B BT E AR INET
BEARKMEBHEEETBREE LR
REFE - BRUBKBREFCHERER
B BE_FT—tF=ZA=1T—HLFE
Z 38 ) 2 8 B A S BR T A i A 25 2 A1 B 5
X RABMBREFTETIER S 2 AR ER
SRMAZE(E) -

AR REERIBMRESHMEN 2T
EXREAN/(BE)cEERBETE I
W ESGREE T —"F=A=+—H
IHFEE2Nz2EBRERRBF,(BE)LE
TEL B S % -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 13. BRER (FHR) &)

Profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders of the Company,
used in the basic earnings/(loss)

R EBREARRT/ (H1B)
B2 AR B RS
w18 (FEr)

Continuing

operations

FEREER

2017
—E—tF
Discontinued

operation
RIEEEXG

per share calculation (HK$'000) 34,757 (4,136) 30,621
Interest on convertible bond (HK$'000) FI#R& &5 2 I 8.( F5T) 1,299 — 1,299
Fair value gain on derivative AMREFTETASS

component of convertible bond RiEWE(FET)

(HK$'000) (3,432) — (3,432)
Profit/(loss) attributable to Rt EGREERFEFER 2

shareholders of the Company, AAFREEE RN,

used in the diluted earnings per (&8 (F&T)

share calculation (HK$'000) 32,624 (4,136) 28,488

Weighted average number of

R EBRELREF/ (K1)

ordinary shares in issue, used RERZEBETEAR
in the basic earnings/(loss) per hniEFH

share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted
average number of ordinary
shares:
Convertible Bond

BENE — EBRE
FH -

QeSS

1,914,997,244

240,000,000

1,914,997,244 1,914,997,244

240,000,000 240,000,000

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue, used in
the diluted earnings per share
calculation

Rt EEREZRNEER 2
BRI EBBIMEF I H

2,154,997,244

2,154,997,244 2,154,997,244

2016
ZT—REF
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
FEREER BT fst
Profit/(loss) attributable to RABIBREREREF,
shareholders of the Company (B8)(F&T)
(HK$°000) 2,273 (273,603) (271,330)
Weighted average number of BETERR 2 ETHE

ordinary shares in issue

1,903,5621,834

1,903,5621,834 1,903,521,834
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERZE
Furniture, Plant and
fixtures machinery and
Leasehold and office Motor demonstration
improvements equipment vehicles machinery
HE i £BR ETIT
L N ) UR &S
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2017 —E-+E£=f=+-H
At 1st April 2016; RZZ-AEMA-A:
Cost kAR 2,803 18,200 2,769 10,159 33,931
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (1,712) (14,716) (1,767) (8,908) (27,103)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,091 3,484 1,002 1,251 6,828
At 1st April 2016, net of RZE—ENA-H"
accumulated depreciation and NR2HTER
impairment WE 1,091 3,484 1,002 1,251 6,828
Additions NE 3,295 1,114 1,308 2,529 8,246
Disposals/write-off e/ - (959) (33) (360) (1,352)
Depreciation (note 7) wEWit7) (936) (1,143) (568) (631) (3,278)
Exchange realignment R - (#1) (17) 1) (59)
At 31st March 2017, net of W=F—+%=fA=1+-H"
accumulated depreciation NBE:HE 3,450 2,455 1,692 2,788 10,385
At 31st March 2017; R-E—+%=A=1-H:
Cost KAE 5,168 17,019 2,332 8,974 33,493
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (1,718) (14,564) (640) (6,186) (23,108)
Net carrying amount EEFE 3,450 2,455 1,692 2,788 10,385
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - BERRZEE)

Furniture, Plant and
fixtures machinery and
Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration
improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
BE R RER B
NEEE BAER RE RTEER ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT T AT
31st March 2016 —Z-"E=f=1-8
At 1st April 2015; R-E-T4MA—A :
Cost RAE 3,660 17,286 1,951 14,064 36,961
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (1,322) (13,834) (1,736) (11,601) (28,493)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,338 3,452 215 2,463 8,468
At 1st April 2015, net of RZE-R$NA-A "
accumulated depreciation and R 2HNER
impairment A 2,338 3,452 215 2,463 8,468
Additions RE 200 3,203 1,074 1,010 5,487
Disposals/write-off HE /R (699) (1,514) = (550) (2,763)
Depreciation (note 7) FEMHE7) (748) (1,643) (286) (1,671) (4,348)
Exchange realignment EXRE — (14) (1) ) (16)
At 31st March 2016, net of RZE-~E=A=+-8"
accumulated depreciation NG 2itme 1,091 3,484 1,002 1,251 6,828
At 31st March 2016 R-E-A~E=A=1-8:
Cost AR 2,803 18,200 2,769 10,159 33,931
Accumulated depreciation 2iiTE (1,712) (14,716) (1,767) (8,908) (27,103)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,091 3,484 1,002 1,251 6,828
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. B EE

Customer  Distribution
Goodwill relationships  agreements
kS EFBR& D e#thE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
31st March 2017 —E—tF=f=1+-H
At st April 2016: R-Z—~EMA—R :
Cost RAE 617,285 19,010 16,750 653,045
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEHELRE
impairment (243,593) (19,010) (16,750) (279,353)
Net carrying amount FEFE 373,692 — — 373,692
At 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2017, R-Z—AFMNA—-HK
net of accumulated amortisation and —T—+&=A=1+—-8"
impairment Mk 2 EHRAE 373,692 — — 373,692
At 31st March 2017: R-E—+F=A=+—-H:
Cost RAE 373,692 19,010 16,750 409,452
Accumulated amortisation Bt B — (19,010) (16,750) (35,760)
Net carrying amount REFE 373,692 - - 373,692
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. EREE &)
Customer Distribution
Goodwill  relationships  agreements Total
e BPBRE Gk Lk Hobs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
31st March 2016 —E-xE=fA=1+-H
At 1st April 2015: R-E—REEMA—AF :
Cost RAE 617,285 19,010 16,750 653,045
Accumulated amortisation BETEH — (19,010) (16,750) (35,760)
Net carrying amount REFE 617,285 — — 617,285
At 1st April 2015 net of accumulated RZZ—-HFMA—A -
amortisation Mk R H 617,285 — — 617,285
Impairment loss recognised ERRRESSE (243,593) = — (243,593)
At 31st March 2016, net of accumulated R-Z— A E=A=+—H "
amortisation and impairment Mk ZEt A RRE 373,692 = — 373,692
At 31st March 2016: RZE-—RE=A=+—H:
Cost AE 617,285 19,010 16,750 653,045
Accumulated amortisation and B ERRE
impairment (243,593) (19,010) (16,750) (279,353)
Net carrying amount EEFE 373,692 — — 373,692
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. BEEE#)
Impairment tests for goodwill B AE A
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units BEDSREEREEDEEN 2 AEER
identified according to operating segments. A segment-level CEABEN SBEEACHEIEHMES
summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below: FEATR
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Hi-tech distribution and services S RHEE G5 8 R RIS T
operation 373,692 373,692
Mining consulting operation FEZAEE(R=ZZ—RF
(discontinued on 4th November +—AMBRIELEE)
2016) — 243,593
373,692 617,285
Less: Impairment loss recognised Ji - BRERIBEEE
Mining consulting operation FEFAER(R=E
(discontinued on —NEF+—AmBEKIE
4th November 2016) ) — (243,593)
373,692 373,692

160 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —&=—+&=H=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the hi-tech distribution and
services operation cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 12.4% (2016: 14.5%).
Due to the uncertainty, no growth rate was used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the hi-tech distribution and services

operation cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations
of the hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-
generating unit for the years ended 31st March 2017 and
2016. The following describes each key assumption on which

management has based its cash flow projections to undertake

impairment testing of goodwill:

Distribution rights — The continuance of the distribution
rights for the hi-tech distribution and services operation in

the foreseeable future would not need any additional costs or

investment.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on

past performance and management’'s expectations for market

development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used is pre-tax and

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

15.

BELEE®)
ENRERSHERBREERREELEN

BHMRERDEERBEFEREELEM
ZARE R IIRBERBEFETAE
o RAENEERBRSAEEER
HEBRERFHEZMBEAERGE
ZHARERERA - REMEBRAKR
Rz RATBEIR KR R12.4% (28 — R4 :
14.5%) - HRFAETHBAREE » B EE
FRIE R EHEE SR REMRD HRREED
REeELBURNAFHERZRERE -

BHE-_ZT—tFR-F—A"F=ZA=1+—
EiﬁﬁZﬁﬂ&é&ﬁ%&%%%%ﬁ
CEABMZEREBETEFERRR -
TREEERET ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁz
ReREBAMKEZ SBEEERR

DiFE — EARARRSRRERD H R
RIS 2 o R A - B EAEREN
FRATARE o

FEEEMNE — AUEBETEEENRATH
BEZEEDNERBERBLEEEYH™
BERIZEE -

BRI E — PIERAZBR R AT R R
BRAE 2 ERR ERR ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 — & —

15.

R =

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Mining consulting operation cash-generating unit
(discontinued on 4th November 2016)

With respect to the goodwill allocated to the mining consulting
operation cash-generating unit, its recoverable amount has
been determined based on the anticipated profitability that
could be derived from the mining consulting operation from
the continued revenue of existing projects and forecasted
revenue from potential projects. The Group has been
closely monitoring the development and negotiations of
these projects since the acquisition of the mining consulting
operation cash-generating unit and an impairment test on the
goodwill allocated to the mining consulting operation cash-
generating unit would be performed if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the

goodwill may be impaired.

In view of the continued negative outlook of the commodities
and mining sector in the near to medium term, including
the decline in commodity prices worldwide with increased
volatility, the Group’s mining consulting division perceives
increasing financial constraints in terms of availability
of exploration funding to, and willingness to commit to
substantiate capital investment by, the Group’s existing and
potential customers in their capital expenditure program
budget for new exploration. This has led to increasing
difficulty in collecting of payments and in securing
commercially acceptable terms for the continuation of further

works for existing projects and new contracts closing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Mining consulting operation cash-generating unit

(discontinued on 4th November 2016) (continued)

The deterioration in market conditions coincided with the
most unexpected resignation of Mr. Jacky Chan Sik Lap (“Mr.
Chan”), founder and CEO of Dragon Mining Overseas Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Dragon Group”), as announced by
the Company on 8th September 2015. Shortly after Mr. Chan’s
departure, a few other senior members of the Dragon Group
also resigned. Due to these circumstances surrounding the
Dragon Group, the Group reviewed the performance and
operations of the mining consulting operation cash-generating

unit and reassessed the recoverable amount of the Dragon

Group.

Based on the value in use calculation prepared by an
independent consultant, the recoverable amount of this
cash-generating unit as at 31st March 2016 was lower than
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, principally
the goodwill and, accordingly, a total impairment loss of

approximately HK$243,593,000 was recognised in statement

of profit or loss for the year ended 31st March 2016.

For the year ended 31st March 2016, the recoverable
amount of the mining consulting services operation cash-
generating unit had been determined based on a value in
use calculation using pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash
flow projections was 18.4% with a terminal growth rate of nil.
The growth rate used did not exceed the long-term average

growth rate for the business in which the mining consulting

services operation cash-generating unit operated.

Apart from the aforesaid impairment of goodwill, there was no

movement in other intangible assets of the Group during the

years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016.

15.

BEEE@)

RBEBAXERESELEMN(R=B—RF
T-ANBE&ILRE)(E)

BoREEN BUOARRR_ZT—H
F LA\ B Fr E ' Dragon Mining
Overseas Limited & H i B 2 A
([Dragon £ |) Dragon Z 4 &Il A 3& 1T
REPRA T SR E([BREE D) RABE - B
PRACABEBIE T A > Dragon B E T
[ AN B IRHHAER £ - B E 4 Dragon &
ERAsHESEMG EREDRNERES
AR EBRIR KL EE - WiT{HDragon
SEZ A EISEE o

BEBERRE 2 EREBTE - %5
CEBNR-_ZE—A"F=A=+—A8A2"
WS BEERRZREELBNZERAE
ZAPE) FHL - 4243,593,000% 7T
ZREBBBECREE=S—X~F=A
ST ItFEZBERTER -

HE-_ZT—AEZA=1+—BLFE &
BEARBESRSELSEN 2 RES
BHERBEECARBESREREMEZR
FHMBBE 2 RARSRBAGTE 2 E
FAEEET - BenEAER A fhR
LH18.4%  RKERELT - FIEAZ
BREW N BBZEESARBES 2B
CEEBNEE EB  RIGRE -

B b ERE)  BE_T—tF R
E-—RF=ZA=+—HILFEAREEHEA
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 16. JHEIHRE

2017 2016
—e-+tF —2nE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Listed debt investments, EERRE
at amortised cost RS AR 46,419 72,343
Less: current portion JB mENER S (46,419) (40,102)
Non-current portion ERENEL S — 32,241
The effective interest rates of the held-to-maturity investments BEINPEREZEBRFNENTI2ER
ranged from 3.2% to 7.0% (2016: 0.3% to 7.0%) per annum T0B(ZZE—X"F:03EZE70E) m
and these investments will mature between May 2017 and HEREFR T —tFRAE=_T—+
December 2017 (2016: between May 2016 and December FHZ A ZE—REF : 22— ~Fh
2017). AR—Z—tF+-HHM) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ESERFER EMEWRIE

2017 2016
—g—t% e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrET FET
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WG R RN E & 121,124 148,561
Less: Impairment of trade receivables B B S EBGRIERE — (19,189)
Trade and bills receivables, net (note (a)) &S REWEIEKNEKEZE
SFRE(HTaE (a)) 121,124 129,372
Finance lease receivables, net (note (b)) BEMREREGRIE - FEE
(K1 (b)) 175,617 71,032
Less: non-current portion* B IERBNE S (72,657) (38,545)
Finance lease receivables, net, current EhE A E W IR R
portion (note (b)) mEE D (K7 (b)) 102,960 32,487
Prepayments SR/ 12,374 5,012
Rental and other deposits HekHEMize 4,518 4,770
Leased assets” HEEE" 14,921 7,021
Other receivables H b e 5R8 49,019 27,084
Less: Impairment of other receivables Ji - HAth R UGRIERVE — (762)
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIE -~ e REAEY
receivables, net RIE R 80,832 43,125
Less: non-current portion* B IERBNE S (3,095) (2,893)
Prepayments, deposits and other TAfTFIE © e REA R
receivables, net, current portion SRIEFRE - REE D 77,737 40,232
Total trade and other receivables, B 5 FE MR IE & B A fE U
current portion FRIBMEEE - MENES D 301,821 202,091
* Total trade and other receivables, * B 5 e BRI K H AL FE UL
non-current portion RIEMBEE - FEREE D 75,752 41,438
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

#

(a)

The leased assets arise from the situations where the Group had
already made payments to vendors or suppliers of machinery
and equipment, but the terms of the lease contracts of the said
machinery and equipment have not commenced. The Group
records these paid amounts under leased assets among its
current assets as such assets had already been earmarked
for leases to customers. Once the terms of a lease contract
commence, the Group ceases to recognise the amount relating
to the leased assets and recognises the lease receivables due
under the lease contract.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on letters of credit or documents against payment, and
in some cases granting a credit period of 5 to 180 days,
except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. An ageing analysis of trade and
bills receivables, based on the invoice date and net of

impairment, as at the end of the reporting period is as

17. EZRWFHAREALEWRIR &)

#

(a)

MEEERBAKEC MR TES LI R
REBHERE 2GR - R BRKS RRE
HEA RMARBGERERER - AEBE KA
EREZZSEXNSEIALRBEE -
DHREHEECEEEHETES - B8
SEARBEMFASL  AREERTBHEREZ
HEEEAMzE  YHEREREEAR
BT 2 HERKHIA -

BERERERERRE

REBEEPHETEEZKRAEE
RERBEXMNRZE - MERNEP
CEBENTS5BE180ATEZZE
R E —RABEMK B
HREMK BHSRERKRFEREKRSE
BIEZZAHRINBRRAERZRR
DT :

follows:
2016
—ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
90 days or less 90 HEk AT 109,700 109,725
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 9,126 9,527
181 to 270 days 181 HE270H 1,252 10,063
271 to 365 days 271 H=E365H — 6
Over 365 days A 365 H 1,046 51
121,124 129,372

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Since the Group’s trade and bills receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade and bills receivable balances.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 =& —

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

S

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

As at 31st March 2017,
HK$1,046,000 (2016: HK$639,000) were past due but
not impaired, as they relate to a number of independent

trade receivables of

customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

follows:

17. ESEWE

(a)

RIA R ELA R R
e L EN

R (&)
AR ERRE(E)
R—ZT—tF=ZA=Z+—-8"

1,046,000 T(= T — X F:
639,000 7T ) 2 & F W FIEE &
HEWERE DENEEE S E
WK IE 3 B 3B 53 31 30 W 48 48 ] A0 8%
ZBURF REESHEWHEZ
BRERDITEAT -

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Over 6 months and up to 9 months 61 A = 9& A — 582
Over 9 months BB 91 A 1,046 57
1,046 639

Movements of the impairment of trade receivables are B S EWEIERE 2 ST

as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tE AN
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At beginning of year F4) 19,189 —
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE — 19,189
Disposal of a discontinued operation H&—IBD & IF&E L5755 (19,189) —
At end of year Fix — 19,189

As at 31st March 2016, included in the above
provision for impairment of trade receivables is a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$19,189,000 with a carrying amount before provision

of HK$19,189,000.

R=F-—X®=A=+-RA &
MBS ERKERERESEE
MEREBEZE S ERRIERE
19,189,000 7T + B B kI8 2 B &
BIBRMEI{E A 19,189,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The creation or release of provision for impaired
receivables has been included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there

is no expectation of recovering the amounts any further.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

17. ESEBWREAREMERREE)
(a) EZERUWFEREWRE(GE)

BB E R R IE 2 B AR R
BIlAGARERA - EEHTE
E—FWERIE - AEE—REM
HRBUBIRINGR 2 KR -

AEBESRERBERERREEZ
FREEN TEIEBEHE

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Hong Kong dollar BT 776 183
US dollar x7T 16,102 19,496
RMB AR 14,428 7,439
Japanese Yen =] 89,581 101,255
Other currencies Hih & 237 999
121,124 129,372

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ESEWKREAREMEWRIEE)
(b) Finance lease receivables, net (b) EEREEWNIE  FHE
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross investment in finance leases FAHREHLKRE 188,570 76,907
Less: unearned finance lease Ji ABEZ B HERA
income (12,953) (5,875)
Present value of minimum lease BYSERSZRE
amounts receivables 175,617 71,032

Less: accumulated allowance for B BETRBERBE (M)
impairment (note (i) — _

175,617 71,032

Less: current portion R REER D (102,960) (32,487)

Non-current portion JERB ;S 72,657 38,545

Note: /fﬁﬁff .

(i) The directors of the Company are of the view that the (i) ARGIEERL  FEFEKE=T
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding finance B At A S E TR A AR
lease receivables balances due from third party EEEBERTA - KEBELEKE
customers is low. The Group has not encountered any B U 2 TE o 2R O A i
default in the collection of the scheduled payments of PR R-E—FER -—F
finance lease receivables. No impairment allowance was —NE=Z A=+ — A ELGREHE
made for the finance lease receivables as at 31 March JEUG TR E (B o
2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ESRWFRERHEMERREE)
(b) Finance lease receivables, net (continued) (b) BEHESEWFRE FHEE)
The analysis of the Group’s gross investment in finance BRI E R ZEEE SRS
leases and present value of minimum lease amounts D AEECHEHEARERRE
receivable under finance leases by relevant maturity EREHER2&ERSBED
groupings at the end of the reporting period is as T
follows:

Gross amounts Present values

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET
Within 1 year —F A 113,045 36,424 102,960 32,487
After 1 year but not more  —FR&EFTBBMF
than 2 years 72,015 32,691 69,227 31,005
After 2 years N F1& 3,510 7,792 3,430 7,540
188,570 76,907 175,617 71,032
The carrying amounts of the Group’s finance lease AEBREHREREKZEBZETE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies. ATF|E¥HE -
2017 2016
=EB—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
uUSD ey 97,712 71,032
RMB AR 77,905 —
175,617 71,032
(c) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the (c) RBEHR ZeZERRAEES
reporting period was the carrying amount of the trade FEURFRIE K H i FEU G TE 7 BRE B ©

and other receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

18.

19.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. BAREFAEBERZERMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2016
—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted investments, at fair value FEMHRE  EANE 38,244 =
During the year, gross gain in respect of the Group’s financial EFR - BEAERRALA BT ABREZSE
asset at fair value through profit or loss was recognised in BEE 7S AFERMIBES T ER o
profit or loss.
The above investments consist of investments in short-term LB ERNEHEYmIEES ZRE
money market fund and unlisted financial product purchased Ea—EHPEBITEE 2 IEERANFEFNX
from a bank in PRC in relation to principal unprotected 28% I LTEMER  ZEMIBTAE
with expected interest rate at 2.8% per annum which were AR EFABRZERMEE  WEBETER
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or High B X o
loss and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.
INVENTORIES 19. =&

Finished goods B o

2016

—E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
4,405 5,156
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B % R MY EE

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERRESEEER
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERE 322,951 457,474
Time deposits TE HATF 5K 57,040 135,172
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBHeEBEER 379,991 592,646
At 31st March 2017, the effective interest rate on short-term R-ZE—tF=A=+—8 ' GHET
bank deposits was approximately 0.58% (2016: 0.41%) per GRZEBRFMNEHNAB0SSE(ZZE—N
annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 31 days F:041E) - ZZEFRZFHHR A3
(2016: 24 days). B(ZZ—RF :24H) -
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following BEMRESSEHEBUANIEEE
currencies:
2016
—E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Hong Kong dollar BTT 203,994 306,134
US dollar =TT 147,782 175,922
RMB AR 13,893 31,220
Japanese Yen H 9,957 76,957
Other currencies Hih 5 4,365 2,413
379,991 592,646
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RIPEHFR  ANEBUARKASE B S
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to R iR1T4 % 513,893,000 T (ZF— 7~
HK$13,893,000 (2016: HK$31,220,000). The RMB is not £ : 31,220,000/ 7T) © ARMETE AR
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under R AHMEK R BRETRAZ
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and I\ %5 1B A 11| LA R 45T~ B T % {5 B FE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign FATE N R A B T P R A 1T N
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange TR ZIBITIBARKE S A & -

RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. BR&
Ordinary shares Preference shares
of HK$0.01 each of HK$0.01 each
BRO.01ETZEER BRO01ETZELR
Ordinary Preference
Number share Number share
of shares capital of shares capital Total
RG#A EBRRE RH#AE BERRK g
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& AT T T TET
Authorised: ETE
At 31st March 2016 and 2017 RIZ-RERZZ—tF
=A=1-H 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Issued: BT
At 1st April 2015 RZZE-hENA—-H 1,614,997 16,150 — — 16,150
Issue of shares (note) BakG ) 300,000 3,000 = = 3,000
At 31st March 2016, 1st April RZE-~E=A=t-H"
2016 and 31st March 2017 ZE-REMA-BR
“Z—+tf=A=1-H 1,914,997 19,150 - - 19,150
Note: Wiz -

On 15th April 2015, the Company issued 300,000,000 new ordinary
shares to Ms. Lu Ying (“Ms. Lu”), holder of the convertible bond, at a
placing price of HK$0.105 per placing share, pursuant to the placing
agreement which the Company entered into on 30th March 2015 with
the placing agent to place new shares on a best effort basis. The
placement transaction costs included legal fees and other professional
fees of approximately HK$1,332,000. The placing of shares has
resulted in the increase of share capital and share premium by
HK$3,000,000 and HK$27,168,000, respectively.

R-E—AFNA+HA BREARAR=Z—A
FZA=+HRHREERBEARENEERETRG
el 2 BRE R ARANREETRESR
19 0.105 8 T M PERA 2 (MR + |) (AT RBR E 5
2+ 48 A)E17300,000,000 A% 37 E @A o Bl &R
SRABIELEEERREMEZEEE A 1,332,000
P IT o BB AR 1D B BUE IR AN AR 15 % B 9 Bl 35 hn
3,000,000 7% 7T % 27,168,000 7 7T °
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

The cumulative translation adjustments represent cumulative
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong which
are dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of
foreign currencies, which is set out in note 2.9 to the financial

statements.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

| =
22. RESERVES 22. f#%E
Cumulative
translation
adjustments
Share Contributed (note (a))  Accumulated
premium surplus  RiHRERE losses Total
B3 EE BB (Kt (a) ZHER 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FET FET FET
Balances at 1st April 2015 RoE-REMA-Az 57,300 1,071,190 1,009 (89,403) 1,040,195
Loss for the year FRER - = = (271,330) (271,330)
Currency translation differences of  [ESMEK 7 EMHEZE
foreign operations — — (851) — (851)
Total comprehensive income ENZAKEEE
for the year — — (851) (271,330) (272,181)
Issue of shares (note 21) BRM(HaE21) 27,168 — — — 27,168
Balances at 31st March 2016 and  RW=Z—-A~E=ZA=1+—HEK
at 1t April 2016 “T-AEMA-BEH 84,477 1,071,190 248 (360,733) 795,182
Profit for the year ERER - - - 30,621 30,621
Currency translation differences of  ESM Kz EMHEZE
foreign operations - - (1,745) - (1,745)
Total comprehensive income FR2ENEEE
for the year - - (1,745) 30,621 28,876
Balances at 31st March 2017 RZE—+F=A=t-HZ
oy 80,477 1,071,190 (1,497) (330,112) 824,058
Note: Hiat -
(a) Cumulative translation adjustments (a) RQaERE

R REABRIERER BRI EB MR
RAEEZ REtIMNEZRE - HRBRIBREK
MiE2.9 B RISNE 2 &Rt IREREEIE -
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31st March 2017 —&=—+&=H=+—H

23. CONVERTIBLE BOND 23. AARES
2016
—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Liability component of convertible bond — AJ#RES 2 B EZH 59,454 58,155
Derivative component of convertible bond AJ#EEH 2 TE T E LD 241 3,673

On 13th June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Million Land Limited, an
independent third party, to acquire its entire equity interests
in the Dragon Group and the shareholder’s loan owed by the
Dragon Group to its then shareholder (the “Acquisition”), at
a consideration with a total fair value of HK$272,453,000,
consisting of HK$140,000,000 cash, HK$60,000,000
Consideration Shares and HK$72,453,000 convertible bond
(principal amount: HK$60,000,000).

On 20th August 2014, the Company issued convertible
bond in the principal amount of HK$60,000,000 to Million
Land Limited, for the partial settlement of the Acquisition.
The maturity date of the convertible bond is on the third
anniversary of the date of issuance (i.e. 21st August 2017).
The convertible bond bears no interest on the principal
amount. No security or guarantee is granted in respect of the
convertible bond. The convertible bond can be converted into
240,000,000 shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.25
per conversion share (subject to adjustment pursuant to the

terms of the convertible bond).

Unless previously converted, the Company shall redeem
the convertible bond on the maturity date at the redemption
amount which is 100% of the principal amount. Any amount
of the convertible bond which is redeemed by the Company
will forthwith be cancelled. At 31st March 2017 and 2016, no
convertible bond was converted and the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bond was HK$60,000,000.

RZE—MEAA+T=0 ' ~"EEHEB
37 %85 =77 Million Land Limited 5132 B &=
Wik - AUE E W Dragon &£ &~ 2 2%
# KDragon&E B & R EERKR R 2K
REF(WESEHE]) KREzARLE
/272,453,000 7T £ #E 140,000,000
7 7L & ~ 60,000,000 7T K B B 19D &
72,453,000 7T 7] 2 iR B F(K & 5 -
60,000,000 7T) °

RZZE—MOMENA=-+HB A2F
M Million Land Limited# 17 & & %
60,000,000 % T 2 A # iR & 55 - 1/‘/\7351 &
WEERIH 2 E D I8 - iR ES SR %
TEHER=BAFERAEIZZE—tF/\ A
ZH+—R)EIH - ATRREF 2 AS B
B oo A SR RRESEL EAERK
BR AR ESFAIRNSHBRESRA
R 0.25 B T (FI R IB AT R E 5 2 1§
SRAEH %) 5424 240,000,000 B A&7 o

BRIEzAIE A - BRIARREAEREH
BB B AEEZ100%) & =[]
BEES - ARBMELD 2 EF A RRE
AR GHREH R_F—tFRk_
Z-RF=A=+—0 BETRRKRES
B MABRESZ KEEREER
60,000,000 % 7T, °
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31st March 2017 —E=—+4&=H=+—H

23. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 23. AIARESRE)

E$%@Zﬁé%%#ﬁ%W%%Zﬂﬁ
BiESmE .#ﬂﬁ*“?%ﬁlm o BNaE
'LB &f/T/_:EI/\u ﬂﬁ;/z%uﬂ F#&i

The convertible bond recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated into

two components for accounting purposes, namely the liability

176

component and the derivative component, and the movements MRz #ghan T
of these components during the reporting period are as
follows:
Liability Derivative
component component Total
&% FETEHS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
At 1st April 2015 RZZE-—RFMNA—H 56,881 2,468 59,349
Amortisation of liability component of BRRES RSS2 B
convertible bond (note 9) (#ii29) 1,274 — 1,274
Fair value loss on derivative component  AIAREATATARS 2
of convertible bond DREESR - 1,205 1,205
At 31st March 2016 and RZZ-—R~E=ZA=t—HBk
1st April 2016 —T—FmA—AH 58,155 3,673 61,828
Amortisation of liability component of HRREFABEDH 2B
convertible bond (note 9) (#1:£9) 1,299 - 1,299
Fair value gain on derivative component AR EFTET AT
of convertible bond AR ENE - (3,432) (3,432)
At 31st March 2017 —t&=A=1+-H 59,454 241 59,695
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

24. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 24. HE—RBHBEAF
On 15th April 2015, the Group entered into a sale and RZE—RAFMA+ARH AEEEIL
purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interest in EEHH WA —R2BIYIE=AFEE
American Tec Macao Commerical Offshore Company Limited AR AR HEHENETRMEEERE
to Tidecrown Management Limited, an independent third REBRAR 2 2HBE  RERER
party, at a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000. The disposal 2,000,000 7T ° HEFIEERE BT °

was completed on the same day.

2016
“E—RF
Note HK$'000
M et FET
Net assets disposed of Tt &2 BEFE —
Professional fee and expenses EXEBERAETE 152
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE - B ARz K 6 1,848
2,000
Satisfied by: PANIES
Cash Be 2,000
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalent in HE—HNBARZRERREEMEIEBEE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: MAFEITAT
2016
—T—RF
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration ReERE 2,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of Tt & 2 R e RIRTTA 84 —
Professional fee and expenses EXBRAEYH (152)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HE—FRBRARZHRER
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReFEEBEERANFE 1,848
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B % R MY EE

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25.

BEEENREARKMENRE

2017 2016

—E—tF —TREF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade and bills payables B 5N RIE RN ER 158,194 291,023
Accrual for operating expenses KEBH Y B 53,810 57,132
Receipts in advance TR IE 38,388 11,402
Deposits received (note 27) Bz e (Hit27) 6,616 1,853
Other payables H e 508 35,490 14,911
292,498 376,321

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the

invoice date, is as follows:

BHRNFRBARENRBREZARZE

BT

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN S

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

90 days or less 90 HE AT 145,468 175,608
91 to 180 days 91HZ= 180 H 7,216 7,521
181 to 270 days 181 HZ270H 1,486 2,316
271 to 365 days 271 HZ 365 H 1,272 104,224
Over 365 days HBid 365 H 2,752 1,354
158,194 291,023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25. EZRENREREMENRKIEE)
The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are BEREMNPIENEMNZE ZEmE T
denominated in the following currencies: E¥ AN

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Hong Kong dollar BT 35,478 21,700
US dollar =TT 9,722 122,287
RMB AR 8,896 2,501
Japanese Yen =NE] 102,373 141,691
Other currencies Hibh gk 1,725 2,844
Total FRk) 158,194 291,023

26. DEFERRED TAX 26. ELEFIIE
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences FIERIBIRE A EAFBAEAREDE
under the liability method using the applicable tax rates which FEENERC ERREREREZESA
are expected to apply at the time of reversal of the temporary AT -
differences.

The movements in net deferred tax liabilities are as follows: EERIEBEFR 2 EEHAT
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of year F9) (494) (401)
Recognised in the statement of profit RE#m R AR
or loss (note 10) (HtaE10) — (88)
Exchange realignment HE 5, R — (5)
At end of year Fi (494) (494)
Representing: K&k
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEA E (494) (494)
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31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities), without

taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

26.

EFERLIR ()

FE 3T R IR SRR BT A E B S
BT REREEE (AB) 2]
TS«

Accelerated

tax Provision of

depreciation inventories Total
MEBBITE FERE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1st April 2015 R=ZZT—hFWMA—H (669) 268 (401)
Recognised in the statement W RWER (Mt 10)
of profit or loss (note 10) (11) (77) (88)
Exchange realignment bE 3 F () = (5)
At 31st March 20186, RZE—R"F=A=+—8 "
1st April 2016 and “E-RFEOA-BR
31st March 2017 —T—tF=A=+—H (685) 191 (494)

As at 31st March 2017, the Group had unrecognised deferred
tax assets of HK$9,628,000 (2016: HK$8,144,000), primarily
representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses (subject
to agreement by relevant tax authorities) which can be carried
forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time

and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

26.

27.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the Mainland China enterprise income tax law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1st
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31st December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1st
January 2008.

As at 31st March 2017 and 2016, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities for taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s

subsidiaries in Mainland China.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

P il
e
4 Y

W-F

26. ELEBIEE)

BRI B A FE TS RE - AR E A
R ZINERERBIMNTEET IR ZRE
BEAN10%TBINFL - ZBEHREH =TT
NE—A—BARBREBRIHERAR-_TZTLF
FTZAZT—HEBEAZRF - HMPERA
HEDGINE B EFTR AEE BRI AMIEA
e - Bl REME AR 2 TE TR TR o Bt
AEEME  BRATER/S%H10% ° E
bt AEEEEE AR E AU 2 M
BARGBH-_ZENF—A—ARBELZ
BFREE 2 REFRTEINF

RZE—tFRZFE—R"F=A=+—
B AEBAFEANMZHBARZKE
ERMENZHIE - WESRKREREL
MIEEE -

27. EWEE

2017 2016
—g—+ —FRE

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Deposits received from lessees B 3t B & H & YR A
on finance leasing 2i&k& 29,125 7,814
Less: current portion (note 25) B OREE D (HaE25) (6,616) (1,853)
Non-current portion IERENER 22,509 5,961
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B % R MY EE

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

28. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 28. B¥EMEAZRE
Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to net cash METERBGEN(ER) B E EaE
flows from operating activities: EZBREREFEIEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
(Restated)
(sg=7)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETIS R AT R F], (&E)
From continuing operations REFERLEER 42,890 10,026
From a discontinued operation RE— AR IS EER (4,136) (271,653)
Adjustments for: R
Finance income U3 ON (5,797) (3,0083)
Finance costs HiEER 1,471 2,510
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative ATMRESITETAERLD 2
component of convertible bond A fEEBE () (3,432) 1,205
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERBETE
equipment 3,278 4,348
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BKEREEZ
equipment, net E18 - FEE 407 163
Impairment of goodwill B R E — 243,593
Gain on disposal of a discontinued HE—BERIEEEET
operation & (153) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE KB AR Z e — (1,848)
Provision for impairment of trade and E 5 JE WK TE K H A
other receivables JE UK TE R (B B — 19,951
34,528 5,292
Increase in inventories FEEMm (4,221) (7,712)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 EWGRIE R HAth
receivables FEW I (3 ) R (154,280) 11,370
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5B FRIE R EHAD
payables FEREIECR L) /1N (60,274) 116,149
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from  ZEM(ER) E4L2RS
operations mEFRE (184,247) 125,099
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

29.

30.

31.

32.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2017, the Group had banking facilities of
HK$676,105,000 (2016: HK$796,379,000) from several banks
for loans and trade financing. As at 31st March 2017, banking
facilities of HK$146,910,000 (2016: HK$244,894,000) were
utilised by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2017, the guarantees given by the Group
to certain banks in respect of performance bonds and bid
bonds in favour of certain contract customers amounted to
HK$3,262,000 (2016: HK$2,118,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
warehouses under operating lease arrangements. The leases
for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

29.

30.

31.

RITEE

N_EBE—+E=F=+—8 A&EENS
= TiR1TZR1TREE 676,105,0008 7T(=
T — N4 : 796,379,000 T )EAER K
BoME N_E—+F=A=+—08"
AREB D B 146,910,000/ T(ZFE—7~
F 244,894,000 7)) ZRITHE ©

RAREE

R-BE—+E=A=+—B "&EHEE
ETENRPEBZBHRES RIIZR
FeRAE TRITRMEIER 3,262,000 7T
—F X 2,118,000/87T) °

ReHEARE
EREBEA

ARERBEZEEERERHFAELET
WAZWERAE - REWE2 HEAY
NFAFEIETE -

RBERR - AREREZETAIHEL
BHE 2 RRKEESERER T HED
H

2017 2016
=g+ —FRE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within one year 1F AR 14,181 9,037
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoEFSF(PIEEREMFE) 5,247 10,973
19,428 20,010

COMMITMENTS

As at 31st March 2017, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments or contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

32.

i

RZE—+E=A=+—8 AEBEWE
ERERERNAESIABR(ZZ—X
FoE) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33.

Key management compensation of the Group

The key management compensation of the Group other than
the executive directors from the continuing operations for the

year is as follows:

HRAEALTZXS
FREEXEEEASMS

AEBTZEBAB(REEZHTEER
Sz

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and bonus e~ R ML 7,938 8,893
Retirement benefits — defined contribution RKIEHN — FEHRE 2

scheme 80 45

8,018 8,938

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8

to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

34.

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

All financial assets of the Group as at 31st March 2017 and
2016 were categorised as loans and receivables, except
for held-to-maturity investments and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in notes 16 and 18 to the financial

statements respectively.

All financial liabilities of the Group and the Company as at
31st March 2017 and 2016 were categorised at amortised
cost, except for the derivative component of convertible bond
which has been categorised as a financial liability at fair value

through profit or loss.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been
represented as if the operation discontinued during the year
had been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative

period (note 11).

34.

35.

RERNE S 2EMTA
AEER_ZFT—CtFR_FT—R"EF=A
=t—BZHMBESREERERERRE
WA (D BIR ISR ML 16 R 18 2 #F
ERHRERERABFABRZSEBE
ERRSL) -

AEERARRR -_F—LFR_F—X
FZA=t—BZMESRAEREHEKX
AEFE - HEAMREFZOTETARSE
BEARAAEIRENBREEZ SR
BfE-

LEBEHF

BakRUAFEESH2Y  BHOR
REFHKIEEEEBNERBYIE LR
B (MIE11) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R MY EE

31st March 2017 ZZ—+tH=A=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

36.

AT MBI T

RRARREHE BRI & 2 & RN
™

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—XRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 369 —
Investment in subsidiaries REBRARZEE 702,598 656,736
702,967 656,736
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables A fE U R IE 262 837
Amount due from a subsidiary FEM —FEIB B & Bl 3R 1,121 1,121
Cash and cash equivalents Be kRS EHEEHR 58,326 135,662
59,709 137,620
Total assets BEMRE 762,676 794,356
EQUITY s
Share capital & A 19,150 19,150
Reserves (note) A=) 590,296 623,332
Total equity EREE 609,446 642,482
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 A B &

31st March 2017 ZZ—tF=A=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AQAIMBARREKE)
COMPANY (continued)

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
LIABILITIES a8\
Current liabilities RBEE
Derivative component of AIRRES
convertible bond $THE T EERS 59,694 3,673
Other payables B fE - 508 846 893
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A< — P B JB8 1% ) KT8 92,690 89,153
153,230 93,719
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Liability component of convertible bond AR ES 2 BEILH — 58,155
— 58,155
Total liabilities BEHE 153,230 151,874
Total equity and liabilities EakBELEE 762,676 794,356
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) BEFE (93,521) 43,901
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRARBEE 609,446 700,637
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 7% 3 B &

31st March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. ADEMKEMRRETE)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Hisz -

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: APz FEERZWOT

Share Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total
R4 RE BRER 2itEBE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Balances at 1st April 2015 RZZT—RFWA—HzZ&EH 57,309 1,071,190 (185,617) 942,882
Loss for the year and total FREERFALE WL
comprehensive income
for the year — — (346,718) (346,718)
Issue of shares (note 21) BATRAD (HTat21) 27,168 — — 27,168
Balances at 31st March 2016 RZE—R"F=A=1t—HK
and at 1st April 2016 —E-XNENA—AZEH 84,477 1,071,190 (532,335) 623,332
Loss for the year and total FAEBBRFAZHEREEE
comprehensive income
for the year — — (33,036) (33,036)
Balances at 31st March 2017 R=—E—tF=HA=+—H
k-3 84,477 1,071,190 (565,371) 590,296
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